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CHAIR MATEO: The Housing and Human Services Committee meeting for August 4th
is called order. The Members present this morning the, uh, Vice-Chair of the
Committee Member Joe Pontanilla, Committee Members Charmaine Tavares, Jo
Anne Johnson, Council Chair Riki Hokama. Other Members present this morning
Michelle Anderson, uh, Dain Kane, uh, the Staff present with us this morning we
have our Committee Analyst Lance Taguchi and our Secretary Yvette Bantilan.
The departments present with us this morning, we have the Director of Housing
and Human, Human Concerns Director Lee. The Director Mike Foley with the
Planning Department. The Deputy Director Mike Miyamoto with Public Works
and Environmental Management. The Director of the Water Department Mr.
Tengan, Director Tengan. From the Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi. From, uh,
representing the Maui Police Department Michael [sic} Pellazar.
At this point we're gonna go right into testimonies. We have several members of
the audience signed up to testify. I'd like to just remind you when you do come
up to testify you will be given three minutes to do so and one minute to conclude
if need be. When you come up to the podium please be sure to state your name
and whether or not you represent an organization or not and please so state that,
uh, association. And as a reminder at this particular point, uh, this is a good time
for those of you who have cell phones or pagers, if you could please turn them off
to avoid any disruptions to the proceedings. That being said, the first individual
signed up to testify this morning is Jo-Ann Ridao. And Jo-Ann will be followed
by Winona Martinez.
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... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
MS. RIDAO: Good morning, Chair Mateo and Council members. My name is Jo-Ann
Ridao and I am the Managing Director of Lokahi Pacific. You've heard that
many times.
I am here this morning to speak in support of the Hale Mua Project. For the past
20 plus years, Lokahi Pacific has been providing independent living rental
housing for persons with special needs. I share this with you because I have seen
firsthand how housing, a most basic need, has changed the lives of countless
individuals and families. I've seen persons diagnosed with chronic mental illness
become independent, contributing members of this society. I've seen battered
women transition from being a victim to reclaiming their self-worth and became,
become self-sufficient. I attribute this to the security of having a stable home
environment.
For the last seven years, Lokahi Pacific has operated a first-time home buyers
program that has assisted 76 families, totaling 239 household members. We have
experienced the disbelief, the joy and the fulfillment of families who never
believe that they would be able to purchase a home. We currently have a waiting
list of 170 families hoping that someday they too will be able to purchase a home.
I see the Hale Mua Subdivision as a means by which these families can turn their
hope into reality. There are no homes listed on Maui today that 80 percent to 100
percent median income family range can purchase a home even with our
assistance.
I mention these things because I really want this committee to consider spending
the next 20 days figuring out how we can make this project work. It is my
understanding from viewing your committee meetings, and reading The Maui
News that the issues are beyond affordable project itself. It is also my
understanding that some of these issues may be resolved with unilateral
agreements that would be recorded and run with the land. Believe me, I
understand this is a very simplified version of what you are considering. I believe
most of the concerns have been aired. So for the next 20 days or so before this
request comes to the vote, can we all focus on how we can make this project
work. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any questions for the testifier? My. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, Jo-Ann.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Of your 170 families on the wait list, are the families,
uh, what is the median income for those families--
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MS. RIDAO: All of them are 80-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --range-MS. RIDAO: --percent and below.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Eighty percent and below?
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Any additional questions? Thank you very much. Winona Martinez
and to be followed by Cindy Texeira.
MS. MARTINEZ: Good morning, Chairman Mateo and County Council Members. I am
Winona Martinez, Principal of St. Anthony Grade School, and I have been asked
to read a letter from the Rev. Thomas Gross, Vicar General of the Diocese of
Honolulu.
Dear Chairman Mateo and Committee Members: The Roman Catholic Church in
the State of Hawaii is presenting testimony on the subject application currently
pending review by the Council's Housing and Human Services Committee. The
Church is the owner of property at 1637 Mill Street, Wailuku, Maui, containing
an area of 11.204 acres, the site of St. Anthony of Padua Church and School.
Briefly, St. Anthony's will be adversely affected by the proposed Hale Mua
Project, in particular by the construction of the Imi Kala Road Extension adjacent
to St. Anthony's property. It is our understanding that the construction of this
roadway improvement was a condition of zoning for another development, the
Piihana Project District, but that the Department of Public Works is now requiring
the applicant, Hale Mua Properties, LLC, to construct these improvements.
The Church maintains that the proposed plans to construct a two-lane extension of
Imi Kala Road on the western side of St. Anthony's property will adversely affect
the school. The project will reduce the area of the school's athletic field and
result in the creation of a large remnant parcel bisected by the proposed road. St.
Anthony's property is already limited in size. The campus cannot be feasibly
expanded nor can the school be relocated to another site. It is vitally important
for St. Anthony's to minimize the impact of the proposed Imi Kala Road
extension, in order to avoid any issues with respect to its accreditation as a
secondary school.
The only plan for the proposed Imi Kala Road extension that the Church is aware
of is referred to as the "Imi Kala Road Widening Project No. 92-16" prepared by
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the GMP Associates, Inc. and dated March 20t \ 1996. To date, neither the
Department of Public Works representatives nor the Applicant have met with the
Church to address alignment options for the connection of the Imi Kala Road
extension to Lower Main Street, in the interest of minimizing impacts on St.
Anthony's property. The Church has been under the impression that the Imi Kala
Road extension plan is set and that it is a "take it or leave it" proposition. The
Church also understands the long range plan advocated by the Department of
Public Works is to expand Imi Kala Road fronting St. Anthony's to a four-land
roadway. The Church is adamantly opposed to this future plan. The project will
result in the ioss of approximately 30,000 square feet of land area, the loss of the
Thrift Shop and locker room buildings, and major sound attenuation problems for
the adj acent classroom buildings. Furthermore, it does not make sense for a
four-lane Imi Kala Road to connect to a two-lane Lower Main Street near the
historic Wailuku Bridge. Finally, it must be recognized that Wailuku is an old
traditional town and that two-lane roads are part of the character of this place.
The Church will strongly oppose any attempt to construct a four-lane Imi Kala
Road fronting its property.
Relative to the subject HRS 201 G Application, the Church requests that the
subject application be deferred pending resolution of the alignment plan for the
Imi Kala Road extension fronting St. Anthony's. In the alternative, the Church
requests that the following exemption be deleted or deleted or denied-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. MARTINEZ: --F.2. an exemption ...
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MS. MARTINEZ: ... of Chapter 19.45, MCC Project District Processing Regulations,
shall be granted to permit the realignment of Imi Kala Street without the filing
and processing of Project District Phase II and Phase III applications.
Was that ...
CHAIR MATEO: You can go ahead and continue your ... about the end.
MS. MARTINEZ: This exemption eliminates the opportunity for a public hearing and
review of plans for the Imi Kala Street Extension. These improvements were
previously required as a condition of zoning for the Piihana Project District under
the provisions of MCC Chapter 19.45. The Project District Phase II application
requires a public hearing and approval for, by the Maui Planning Commission,
and the Phase III application requires final review and approval by the Planning
Department. Given the potential adverse impact of Imi Kala Road extension on
St. Anthony's, the Church respectfully requests at least the opportunity for a
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public hearing and review of this matter under the Project District Phase II and
Phase III procedures.
In closing, the Church is very concerned about the impact of the Imi Kala Road
extension on St. Anthony's and will assert its rights under the Religious Land Use
and Institutionalized Persons Act of 2000 to maintain the integrity and operation
of St. Anthony School.
Your concern and consideration of our request would be most appreciated.
Sincerely, Thomas L. Gross, Vicar General.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you for being here. Do you
know if St. Anthony was consulted when the Piihana District was approved and
the condition for Imi Kala Road was conditioned on that project?
MS. MARTINEZ: I'm not sure of that. I probably would have to check with the pastor
or parish council but the ... I, I'm part of the grade school and I was not purview
to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The issue of widening this road came to the
attention of St. Anthony just recently with this new project?
MS. MARTINEZ: I believe there was discussion in the past with C. Brewer, but I'm not
certain as to what decisions were made at that time if it was deferred or cancelled.
I'm not certain.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you very much. Cindy Texeira to be followed by
Jim Riley.
MS. TEXEIRA: Hi, good morning, Chair Mateo and County Council members. My
name is Cindy Texeira and I'm here representing myself. I was born and had the
good fortune to have been raised on Maui. I'm here today to ask that you support
the Hale Mua Project.
My daughter lives in the State of Washington because the cost of housing is just
too high. Even I on many occasions have considered relocating to the mainland
where homes are affordable. Although the Hale Mua Project would bring more
traffic into the Wailuku area, it would simply be moving traffic from other
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congested areas on the island into Wailuku. We have congestion everywhere on
the island. Please do not use the traffic issue to stop this project.
I believe that all of the issues discussed, housing is the most critical and needs to
be addressed. You know affordable housing is needed when you find six to eight
vehicles parked in front of every home with multiple families sharing that home.
It is the only way that they can manage to survive.
When elderly residents move out of their subsidized apartments to go and live
with family members so they, so their social security can be used to help with
mortgages or rent. When families have to work two or three jobs just to be able to
afford their home.
Please do not reject this project. We need affordable housing now more than
ever. This project may be my last opportunity to own a home here on the island
where I was born. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very
much.
MS. TEXEIRA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Jim Riley to be followed by Stan Franco.
MR. RILEY: My name is Jim Riley. I'm speaking as a private individual. I'd like to
thank the Members of the committee for the opportunity to testify.
The State of Hawaii is protected by numerous land use codes and regulations. We
have a State land use law providing district boundaries, we have County zoning,
we have community plans, we're soon to have a Countywide general plan, and a
maze of permits that a developer must navigate, uh . . . environmental
assessments, SMAs, CDUA, other subdivision requirements. All of these laws
and regulations are in place to protect ourselves from ourselves. Do we feel safe
yet? But at what cost, at what cost to the families of Maui do we live under this
bureaucratic nightmare these land use codes and regulations? At what costs to the
young families of Maui striving to find a place to live so that they can remain on
Maui and raise their families? At what place, at what cost for a family to obtain a
home? Maui must be allowed to develop to provide housing options for all of its
families and residents and residents. Housing should not be a lUXUry. Housing is
a necessity. How can young families raise children, emoll them in schools, see to
their welfare when they have no idea how they're gonna survive month to month
to put a shelter over their heads. Please do not shut the door on these families.
The crisis facing Maui County today is not abandon derelict vehicles. It is a lack
of housing. Maui today is not the same as it was in the '60s and '70s. The pace
of life has changed. The resident population has changed, and yet the percentage
of land allowed for urban development remains virtually the same as it was in the
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'60s and '70s. We have the land, we have the expertise, we must address the
housing crisis and start developing housing for the families of Maui County.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions? Thank you very much. Stan
Franco to be followed by Bob Hanusa.
MR. FRANCO: Mr. Mateo, Council member, County department heads, people of Maui,
my name is Stan Franco, and I speak for myself.
In 1945 I was one and half years old and my father and mother and I lived on
Vineyard Street in Wailuku. My Dad was in the army, my mother was a
homemaker. We rented a home from a local family. One day the owners came to
tell my parents that they had two weeks to leave our home because the home had
been sold. My father and mother were in the panic. They did not have the money
to buy a home so they turned to my paternal grandfather to ask him for a loan so
that they could buy a rundown plantation home in Haiku. For two thousand
dollars we moved in and there is where I grew up. Over the years that I lived
there we had to make several improvements to the house to keep it livable, but I
never saw myself as being deprived because I had a place to rest, play, and eat.
In 2005 I believe the story for many families remain the same. In this seller's
market many who cannot afford to buy are in constant fear that their landlords
will give them those scary words ... "we have sold our place. You must move
within 45 days.

So what does this have to do with the Hale Mua Project? Like several of you I
have concerns of the Hale Mua Project. For instance, I would hope that not all of
the affordable homes will be built in one place. I would have like to see a mix
community of market and affordable homes. I do not like homes sharing a
common garage wall, and with only 5,000 square foot lot families are living too
close to each other. And also it seems that the traffic around the development will
be going over a bridge to Imi Kala Place and then on to the cane haul road
bordering St. Anthony High School. I'm concerned that the improvements to the
cane haul road will adversely impact the grounds and buildings of St. Anthony
High School the only catholic high school on Maui.
Even though I have these concerns, I believe that we must give a chance to our
families to have a place of their own. Mr. Kim has offered this community to
build over 200 homes within the price range of many of our working families.
We must give families a chance just as my parents got a chance from my paternal
grandfather to find a place to call home. I agree the project is not ideal, but as a
community we have not worked out the affordable housing policy so that
developers know the ground rule for their projects. So I ask you my friends and
representatives of Maui's people to see it in your heart to approve the Hale Mua
Project and give a chance to our working families to find a place to call home.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Franco. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you. Bob Hanusa to be followed by Peter Martin.
(note: long pause)
MR. HANUSA: Good morning, Chairman Mateo and Council members. My name is
Bob Hanusa. I'm representing myself. I have a ... is this the proper place to ask
questions?
CHAIR MATEO: You may ask your questions and, uh, we could respond, we will
respond at a later time.
MR. HANUSA: Okay, I have two concerns. One concerns a potential school site. It's
been banded around that it's available, but I don't see it any place in writing, and
I, I wondered do we have assurances that that school site is available.
My second concern is, urn, is the Hale Mua Project assured of adequate financing
to complete the project and not get stalled halfway through. Those are my
questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. I will not respond to them at this point.
MR. HANUSA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: You may continue with your testimony.
MR. HANUSA: Uh ...
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. We'll move on. Peter Martin to be followed
by Glenn Kosaka.
(note: long pause)
MR. MARTIN: Good, good morning, Chairman Mateo and Council members. I tried to
keep this simple, but I have a little outline that would ... can I pass that out or
someone could help.
CHAIR MATEO: You may give it to Staff Staff.
MR. MARTIN: I'd like to start out, uh, my name is Peter Martin. I believe I said that.
I'd like to start out by saying, uh, you got my support for Hale Mua. I
congratulate Sterling Kim for, uh, being the entrepreneur in trying to produce
these houses. I hope he's very successful at it bringing 'em in at these prices. I
hope he actually makes a profit because I believe if he does he will go and do it
again, urn, which I think is a good thing.
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My next concept is I wrote down axiom, self-evident, truth, or facts. They're all
kind of the same thing. I think some of you know I was a geometry teacher in the
early '70s and you always had to be sure your axioms. Check your axioms or
what we call truth or just it's a fact. And the fact I had listed write below this is
housing is always a good thing. I think this County should always support
housing especially 50 percent affordable and I don't think we should belittle the
other 50 percent. People are gonna be living in these. They will solve a very
important problem for us, it's that next step up. I noticed that our employees most
of them in the project were involved in by their husbands and wives working
made too much to, urn, even at 140 percent I know that sounds hard to believe but
it isn't that hard for a working couple to each earn 40,000 teaching or even
working at our company and then, urn, you're out of the realm so you get the
chance at the other one. So I think housing is always a good thing. Just imagine
if we had too many houses in the world? That's not a scary thought. So I think
we should always support housing.
I have not an axiom. The idea I read in the paper of separation of place,
wonderful idea, great idea. In a perfect world, fine. This means Haiku is
separated from Paia or what I . . . but the idea of separation place I, I think
shouldn't, is not an axiom. I look at when you go Kapalua, Napili, Kahana,
Honokowai, Kaanapali, Waikuli, Mala, Lahaina ... there is really not much
separation, but we all have the feeling for it and you could do that same list
anywhere. They do not have to have, uh, we shouldn't let this axiom dictate our
thinking that there has to be a separation of place. It's very logical sometimes to
have the infill.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three, three minutes.
MR. MARTIN: Well, I'll, I'll be quick I guess on the rest comments. I agree with Mr.
Franco. Don't let the perfect stand in the way of the good. There's a few
problems with the project, but the overall concept it's housing, it's good.
Traf..., agriculture versus housing. I love the example that sugar cane in 1900
was 4 cents a pound. I brought the Wall Street Journal saying it's now 11 cents a
pound. It hasn't gone up much. Mr. Franco . . . or I even know my Maui
Meadows lot was it 5,000 in '71? It's a half million now. Agriculture I agree
with Alice Lee. Agriculture... land for agricultural is not, not the problem.
Sugar cane 104 years it basically doubled, and houses 30 years have gone up 100
times.
So bottom line, the traffic versus housing, I think this is a no brainer. Housing ...
these young people around they let all the other development and when they
finally need a house-MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
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MR. MARTIN: Anyway, I support ... final, I support housing and especially this
project. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier. Thank you very
much. Glenn Kosaka to be followed by Mahealani Ventura-Oliver.
MR. KOSAKA: Good morning. My name is Glenn Kosaka and I speak here for the
Kula Community Federal Credit Union.
There been various articles in the paper and various rumors, and I think it is
important that I testify today regarding Kula's role in the project.
First, what Kula does not have is any ownership interest nor any investments in
Hale Mua itself in the project itself. Secondly, what Kula does have is the right of
first refusal to acquire the affordable units in the subdivision. Thirdly, Kula views
its role in the affordable housing segment of the project as a public service to
provide affordable housing to the people ofMaui.
Therefore, if Kula acquires the affordable units Kula intends to provide the homes
to qualify buyers at cost. There will be absolutely no profit to the credit union
from sales.
Finally, the Kula Community Credit Union will of course make mortgage loans to
qualified members who request loans. These loans will be at very favorable rates
and conditions. Now, Kula is limited in this process because it can only loan to
its members.
I think that, urn, it is important to note that the affordable housing project itself as
seen by Kula is not a money making effort by Kula, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being here Mr. Kosaka. You said
that Kula Credit Union has right of first refusal. How was that right obtained and
from who?
MR. KOSAKA: There was an agreement signed between Hale Mua and Kula.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was HCDCH or the County's Housing and Human
Concerns Department involved in that agreement?
MR. KOSAKA: I don't believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you said that only members of your credit
association qualify for a loan?
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MR. KOSAKA: Yes. Kula is limited in that respect. It can't loan to non-members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. And so what are the qualifications to be a
member?
MR. KOSAKA: Well, you have to live in a field of membership. Come in, put down I
think five bucks or little more.
COUNCILMEMBER ANTIERSON: And what is that field of membership?
MR. KOSAKA: Uh ... you know I'm not absolutely positive, but it's so many miles
around I guess the original credit union but now it's down in Kahului so I'm not
sure exactly where, what the parameters are. That's what it use to be to my
recollection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you get that information to the Committee
because-MR. KOSAKA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that makes a big difference as to who could
purchase these homes (end oftape lA)
MR. KOSAKA: ... it only feels that it will do it for its members that's all I'm saying,
okay. Anybody can buy the unit and get it funded elsewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what is your right of first refusal give you?
MR. KOSAKA: The right to purchase the units and to distribute them.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Should somebody sell a unit?
MR. KOSAKA: Pardon me. Initially Kula would buy the units, right? And-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I see.
MR. KOSAKA: --or, or an entity organized by Kula.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So your right of first refusal gives you the right to
purchase the units-MR. KOSAKA: (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --initially?
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MR. KOSAKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
MR. KOSAKA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Kosaka, wait hold on.
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry. Member Tavares, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. KOSAKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think that point that you were making needs
to be restated. That anybody can apply with you folks if you own all the units,
but that you're only gonna finance those of your members.
MR. KOSAKA: Okay, the credit union can only make loans to its members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. KOSAKA: Anybody can, you know, any qualified person can apply for a unit and
be able to purchase it and have it funded by someone else that's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Okay, I think that was the point that needed to
be c1arified-MR. KOSAKA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --that it was not just Kula Credit Union members who
would be able to apply.
MR. KOSAKA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mahealani Ventura-Oliver and she'll be followed by Gladys Baisa.
(note: long pause)
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Good morning, Council committee. (spoke in Hawaiian)
I'm glad to be here this morning, and you all know me. I know you. I've been up
at this podium actually since the age of 12, and the first time I was here I was here
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to speak to you . . . well, to your predecessors in regard to a fishpond that was
going to be demolished, and I spoke as a 12 year old that day because I knew that
I had future interest vested there in that fishpond. That was local (spoke in
Hawaiian) and thank goodness it is still there. And it is useable, it is being
managed and it does sustain life. Today you need to make a decision similar to
that to save future interest and to also preserve vested rights of people. This is an
interesting issue here or it presents interesting issues because Sterling Kim's
Quitclaim Deed Document No. 2004-102438 recorded at the Bureau of
Conveyances in Honolulu, does not include the subject property that you are all
discussing. The subject property was disclaimed by Wailuku Sugar Company and
affirmed in a judgment thereafter on September ih, 1926. So anything that is
alleged to have been received or delivered to them thereafter is false. You need to
look at the basic fundamentals of this project being proposed on what standing is
it being proposed to you. And if you should subscribe to anything involving fraud
and direct admittance of this judgment that disclaimed the subject property from
that conveyance that Sterling KimlHale Mua LL. .. , Properties LLC proposes to
base this project on, then you're subscribing to falsity and opening up litigation to
perjury, basically crime. So go back to the beginning of where it all begins. Yes,
there is a need for housing. Yes, there is a superior need to do what is correct, to
do what is right, and to not take away or deprive the right of the lawful owners of
those lands.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: We all know, if! could have another moment, we all know
that the plantation history here, not only on the island of Maui, but throughout
Hawaii (spoke in Hawaiian) is a sorted one. And, you know, whether the
purchaser knew about this or not doesn't matter. Chun v. Park and the Amfac
Waikiki Beachcomber case, supreme court cases definitely uphold the rights of
the injured parties whenever there is a title search, an abstract and subscription
thereto, meaning you sign and approve to whatever this project is based upon for
damages and liability. There is a case pending in Circuit Court right now that has
been filed, Civil No. 05-01-0178(3), that is before the courts where this project
developer-MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: --is proposing to perfect unmarketable title and that is not
anything that you want a third party purchasers or injured persons to jump in on
because how is a lender going to lend. How will Kula be able to give its members
a loan based on a deed which holds nothing, and that is actually levied against at
this time by that judgment rendered by the Hawaii Boundary's Commission on
September ih, 1926.
CHAIR MATEO: Mahealani, thank you very much. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for being here Mahealani.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This is disturbing. Of the 200 some acres involved
here, how much of that land is involved in, in these kuleana claims?
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Well, it depends how you look at it. I haven't done a legal
examination or a final title opinion. I believe that you all been given a
preliminary title opinion. It all depends because kuleana is also notated on the
original document and in the original habendum clause of William Charles
Lunalilo's certificate of title adjudicated back in 1850 something when all of the
titles to the land system began. So the word "kuleana" is held through as a
covenant. We have to go back to the primary record or the record of inception
and we'll find "kuleana" is the descriptive, the legal descriptive label given to the
ahupuaa itself because it is not a crown land type of certificate or adjudicated
award. It is a konohiki certificate of title which is also not incorporated in the
documents itself. The, the law states that if the property is incorporated or
referenced, it's incorporated therein, however, konohiki isn't and it is described as
a kuleana. It actually composes of all of that 200 some odd acres which has been
overlaid upon the original boundaries which is in contrast to Federal case rule
Judge Ezra in 1996 in Napiahi v. Wilson ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that's close enough. You've answered.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Okay. (laughter)
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You have to understand we don't all understand
this the way you do. So you have to keep it very concise.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In this lawsuit that you described, are there current
descendants of this area who are claiming right to this land?
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what would be, once there is a judgment,
when do you anticipate this court case being heard and once there is a judgment
could you give us the, the two options what would happen.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: Well, option one is the judge will dissolve the case and
dismiss it because lack of standing on the developer's behalf. Without the
transfer of kuleanas, without the transfer of all the subject property within the
deed that he proposes to have the right there under ... you know the deed gives
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him the right to do this, there's no standing. Without standing of either party in
the suit there is no suit. So being that the court today did not overturn that
judgment of 1926, the judgment of 1926 is the judgment that is enforced and in
and is in full effect right now. So it acts as a lien on record against that quitclaim.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So just to try to get it clear in my mind, very simply
this lawsuit is to establish clear title for Mr. Kim and that's the attempt that he's
trying to make with this?
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: I would say the attempt is to gamer kuleana or interest
that ... or obviously not transferred in his quitclaim from Wailuku Ag because
Wailuku Ag never received anything from Wailuku Sugar, and that petition
judgment that I found should have been a part of his title record and in my
estimation he's been defrauded against.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
MS. VENTURA-OLIVER: You're welcome. Mahalo.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Gladys Baisa to be followed by Meleana Higgins.
(note: long pause)
MS. BAlSA: Good morning, Council Chair Mateo and Members of the Council. My
name is Gladys Baisa and I'm here today speaking in support of Hale Mua on
behalf of myself and my ohana. I depad ... , I debated at length on speaking out
today, but I felt obligated to do so. I hope that what I have to say can help make a
difference.
I'm a third generation Mauian. My grandparents immigrated here in 1878 as
sugar workers. My entire family has lived on Maui for many, many years. Two
weeks ago we buried my mother. She was 95. She and her family have always
lived on Maui. She always told me and our family you have to own a home. If
you continue to rent at the end of your life, all you will leave is receipts in a box.
Buy a home. I'm a mother of three children, a grandmother of five, and a great
grandmother of three children. They all need homes. None of them are doctors
or lawyers or chiefs. They are the workers of Maui that provide the excellent
quality service that makes Maui the best island in the world for tourists to visit.
Many of their friends live in Las Vegas. They have moved for better
opportunities or for the opportunity to own a home. We need to work out the
problems that are concerned with affordable housing projects. We have to solve
this question about suits and traffic, and costs, and whatever else clouds
affordable projects moving forward. We have to make it happen. We have to
make affordable housing projects a reality. We cannot continue to shoot down
projects. We have to take care of our people. They are hurting. They need your
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help. They are counting and trusting you to take care of them. Where there is a
will there is a way so let's find it together.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you Ms. Baisa. Meleana Higgins to be followed ... by ... Cesar.
MS. HIGGINS: Good morning, Chairman Mateo, Council members, and Maui County
government leaders. I am Meleana Higgins, and I'm testifying today as an
individual in support of the Hale Mua project. This is my first time testifying here
in these chambers so I'm a little nervous, and I want to say that I honor those
who've gone before me who spoke in favor of the project both this evening and at
the elementary school a week ago Monday.
I have a masters in business administration and a master in city and regional
planning, and I won't let that cloud my opinions. I'm in the income group that the
Hale Mua Project would serve. I would like to own a home on Maui. Maui is
home for me. I love Maui and the aina. I love open space. However, I'm very
concerned that without affordable housing Maui will soon become an island of the
haves and the have nots. I ask you to approve this project at its 238 affordable
homes today. There is no perfect project. It is easy to focus on the details what I
call the left brain part of a project on the impacts and the problems of any
development. However, I encourage you to increase our much needed housing
inventory of Maui with its 466 lot project, and I ask you to focus and remain
focused on providing affordable housing now for Maui's working families, their
children, our children, your children. Please approve the Hale Mua Project.
Mahalo.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members any questions? Thank you very much. The last
person to sign up and I'm not even gonna attempt your last name Cesar so ...
MR. GAXIOLA: Council Chair buenos dias. Good morning. Council members, good
morning. My name is Cesar Gaxiola. I'm a resident of Maui for the past 16
years. Married to a local girl. I work on a fulltime job, some times very full, and
also a part-time job. My wife works in a fulltime job. She works for the
Department of Education, and for the past ten years we've been searching to buy
a home, and it's impossible. It's just impossible. And you know for some folks it
might be housing is a need, is a luxury for others. For me and my family housing
right now is a crisis. I been renting all this time. I have two daughters and I just
keep paying, uh, pay rent. My rent is (inaudible) I have to live by how the
landlord tells me how to live. I cannot paint the house purple if I want. I cannot
park my car in the back if I want. I cannot wash my truck in the driveway if I
want because I live in somebody else home. So housing is a crisis for me. I don't
know how it's for you. It's just ridiculous. It seems like we make a lot of money,
but when we go to buy a home, what I make, what my family make is nothing.
The realtors, the mortgage folks ... the last one I saw he almost laughed at me
because he tell me you know you need to double your income. Excuse me? I

HHS 08104105

Page 18

already working 70 hours a week. My wife works, works 40 hours a week. What
are you saying? And it's not like I not doing my best. We're doing our best and
we have considered many times for my wife to also get a part-time job but we
cannot. We have two daughters. One is eight and my oldest daughter is gonna be
eleven. They need us. We need to have an adult all the time with them especially
with all the crazy stuff that's happening right now. So anyway, to make a long
story short, don't let Maui become Mexico. Don't let Maui follow what happened
in Mexico. A large home with a swimming pool, jacuzzi, helicopter pad, uh,
runway for airplanes, nice landscape, a disco tech, surrounded by tents, all the
people that live in those tents use to be me, is my family. That's why some of us
we, we move away looking at and for better dreams, and sometimes I see that
Maui is going in the same way. To be sincere with you is very ... I cannot
describe it. I can say it in Spanish, but it's very impatient to see the, you know,
because you give away your dreams . . . when I moved within the year my
grandma die the-MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes
MR. GAXIOLA: --five years later my grandpa die and I not there to see them. I couldn't
attend their funerals. (inaudible) you moving away looking for better dreams,
better opportunities, yet you have to leave your family and make a big decision.
You find a place, you doing okay, you have a job, you have a family, but housing
is impossible. It just impossible right now, and to add to that it's a social
problems that you have with housing. That if your mom and dad are working,
kids, nobody watching the kids. What they do? They get into trouble. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very
much. Ladies and gentlemen this was the last testifier that signed up for this
morning. The Chair would be happy to invite anyone wanting to testify on this
particular time to come down to the podium at this time. Seeing no one moving
down to the podium area .. , Members, in one of the testifier's, during the
testifiers segment there was questions asked regarding the Kula Community
Federal Credit Union in terms of membership. I believe Ms. Anderson asked the
question and Mr. Kosaka is able to respond at this particular point. In order for us
to start to get answers as soon as possible, if there are no objections by the
Members, 1'd like to bring Mr. Kosaka down to respond to that inquiry.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Kosaka.
MR. KOSAKA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee and the
Council. First, I think because of the questioning I think it is important to
distinguish between the affordable housing program which is subject to the
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review and approval of Maui County and Kula mortgages to its members which is
a totally different manner.
Now as to the question asked by Councilmember Anderson regarding the field of
membership of the Kula Community Federal Credit Union, you can tell from its
name it started in Kula. So the field of membership is this, it's 12 miles as the
crow flies from the Kula Post Office. Now ... but what does that mean, okay.
This is if you live or work in that area. So in terms of parts of the island, it's I
believe most of Kihei, uh, if not all of it, uh, most of Wailuku including parts of
Waihee, and Hana because of a merger, okay. So as I said it's 12 miles as the
crow flies from the Kula Post Office, but you don't have to live in that area. You
can work there. You can live in Lahaina and work in Wailuku and that would
also be within the field of membership. And in the new (inaudible) for the credit
unions I understand that it's not only live and work but also (inaudible) so that is
another possibility and that I think that that can be looked at, but at least right now
it's where you live or work in the field of membership, okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Kosaka. Ms. Anderson does that answer
your question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
MR. KOSAKA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, at this particular time ifthere's no objections we're gonna
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. At the call of the Chair we're gonna call for a
five minute recess. Five minutes. (gavel)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:
HHS-1(2)

10:03 a.m.
10:13 a.m.

HRS
CHAPTER
201 G AFFORDABLE
PROJECTS
(HALE
MUA
AFFORDABLE

HOUSING
HOUSING

PROJECT, WAIEHU)

CHAIR MATEO: (gavel) Meeting will reconvene. Members, thank you very much for
that quick little break. This morning one item on the agenda Housing and Human
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Services 1(2) affordable housing projects, Hale Mua Affordable Housing Project,
Waiehu. This Committee met in Waihee community on Monday, July 25 t\ 2005
at 6:30 p.m. allowing for community input. More than 100 people attended that
meeting and this Committee heard testifiers throughout the evening sharing
concerns and comments regarding the merits, the advantages, problems and the
overall perception of the project. Again, on July 27th the Committee reconvened
in this Chamber continuing the discussion on Hale Mua. The developer provided
a PowerPoint presentation to the Committee, made his consultants and resource
individuals available for questions and did . . . as did the various County
departments. Today, it is the Chair's preference that this Committee focus on
specific issues one at a time allowing for discussion on each area raised where
issues were discussed at our last meeting before going on the next subject matter.
The focus areas will include the community plan, traffic, the bridge, St. Anthony,
water, sewer, drainage, the ohana dwellings and clear title.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're trying to write these down.
repeat that again just a tad slower.

Could you

CHAIR MATEO: The community plan, traffic, it's the bridge, St. Anthony, water,
sewer, drainage, the ohana dwellings, clear title. And should Members have
additional interests wanting to be discussed, we will consider them a later part of
the day. In addition, the developer's consultant is also present along with his
resource people to again help address specific questions. With that being said, I'd
like to open the discussion on the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan. In regards
to the Department of Planning's June 8th letter to Director of Housing and
Services, uh, Human Concerns Director Ms. Lee and its issues raised, I'd like to
provide an opportunity for the Administration to explain if and how they address
the concerns of this project's nonconformance to the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan in supporting the housing project, the affordable housing
project. And perhaps Ms. Lee could also include how the Technical Review
Committee that reviewed this 201G project was able to overcome the conflicts
with the community plan in order to recommend the approval of the project.
MS. LEE: Is that a question for me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Well, Mr. Chair, as we, urn, have taken the position in the past and we still
stand by the position that, that, urn, there are concerns of course with utilizing
agricultural lands for housing, but our overriding concern is, is affordable
housing. I would not be able to answer for the Director of Planning, but as far as
the Mayor's concern, the Administration and our Department, we are very
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supportive of this project. We believe very strongly that there is an affordable
housing crisis, that there is a very serious scarcity of affordable housing, and there
is not a scarcity of agricultural lands. As a matter of fact, 96, about 95, 96 percent
of the lands, of the total lands in Maui County are either agriculture or in
conservation. There's only about 5 percent that is urbanized. So again we take a
strong position that at this time the overriding concern is the provision of
affordable housing.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Lee, then in the review process where the Technical,
Technical Committee reviews the process, the applications for recommendations
to the Committee was that part of the discussion or was that part of, uh, the review
process to take a look at the balance of the community plan for the project?
MS. LEE: No. A lot of the focus was on the design of the overall project, the break
down of the homes, the impacts, the immediate impacts of traffic, drainage, those
kinds of issues occupied most of the discussion.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you, Ms. Lee. Members, any questions for the Director
or, urn, or also to the Planning regarding the community plan, Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I apologize for being late,
but it takes a little while to get down and up on the elevator. Ms. Lee do you, are
you aware of other projects that are addressing this group of, you know, the 70 to
100 percent of median income in housing purchases?
MS. LEE: No. All the other projects that we have lined up to my knowledge at this time
are priced higher. This is the lowest priced housing project that we have available
in Central Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you for that information. I have another
(end of tape IB) I wanted to ask a question of St. Anthony but I'll wait until later.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member Tavares. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn, yes, Ms. Lee, do you know how the State law
that was just passed with regard to I guess the identification of agricultural lands
that are important to the State of Hawaii how that legislation mayor may not
impact any of the land use designations and, you know, more specifically the area
we're talking about as to designating them for housing versus agricultural use or
do you not believe that will come into play in this case.
MS. LEE: I don't believe it will come into play in this case. However, after this process,
if the project is approved, the next step is for the applicant to get a District
Boundary Amendment from the Land Use Commission and then they will have to
deal with that exact issue.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CRAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions regarding . . . go
ahead,Ms.Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Lee you said that
they will get a District Boundary Amendment. Will they, when will they go to
DC,uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER ROKAMA (spoke away from the microphone): RCDCR.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... thank you. RCDCR. Too many initials ... to
get their approval from them?
MS. LEE: That's not included. The RCDCR is not included in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then this is not a 201G-118 RRS project
specifically. Are you using Chapter 46 the County's ...
MS. LEE: Yes. Well, excuse me. RCDCR is not required to review or approve this
project. The County, you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: (inaudible)
MS. LEE: --this body has the authority to approve the project under the 201G process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, under the 201G process as in the past the, the
Council, Council approves or denies and then it goes on to RCDCR.
MS. LEE: No, that was only in the case ofPuunoa. That was an unusual case where the
application originated with RCDCR and then came to the Council for review and
then RCDCR had the, uh, you know, was actually the originator of this, of that
application. To my knowledge that's the only application that ever was handled
that way. The rest of the 201G applications are handled by this Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And this is not under RRS 46?
MS. LEE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it looks to me like you have, urn ... what, I'm
very confused Mr. Chairman because the 201G process, 201G-118 Rawaii
Revised Statutes has its own implementing regulations, administrative rules. And
where in the statutes does it allow us to process an application through 201 G-l18
without using the administrative rules adopted pursuant to this statute?
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MS. LEE: I can have the Corporation Counsel answer that, but I can tell you that
HCDCH with ... whenever there's an application within a particular County be it
the Big Island, City and County of Honolulu, Maui or Kauai, they will defer to the
counties in the application process. So their administrative rules primarily apply
to whenever they process an application.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi. Corp. Counsel could you also respond.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair, to clarify and give you some background, uh, 201G-1l8
process specifically says, states that the corpora ... , a corporation may develop, on
behalf of the State with an eligible developer, etcetera, etcetera. And the
corporation is defined in that statute as the HCDCH or whatever their acronym is.
However, in Chapter 46 Hawaii Revised Statutes, which is the general provisions
that big brother state has given to the counties, uh, specifically Section 46-15.1,
again say, states that any law to the contrary notwithstanding, any county shall
have the, shall have and may exercise the same powers, subject to applicable
limitations, as those granted the Housing and Community Development
Corporation of Hawaii pursuant to Chapter 201G, etcetera, etcetera. That being
stated, we have interpret that to say that the county, meaning the County
Administration, may process an application pursuant to 201G-118 in conjunction
or in addition to the State housing, uh, HCDCH. The gist being that a developer
on its own cannot submit a petition. It needs to be so-called sponsored and in this
case its either the State agency, which we had in the case of Puunoa, or now
before you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kushi. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So let me see if I get this straight, Mr. Kushi.
You're saying that HRS 46-15 empowers the County to use, urn, the same powers
that HCDCH has in developing housing for low and moderate income?
MR. KUSHI: Correct, under 201G ... Chapter 201G. And also in 46 ... I believe it's
15 or whatever it is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KUSHI: Forty six dash fifteen there is a separate process called experimental and
demonstration housing projects which for whatever reason has not been, had not
been processed lately. We have in the past though.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you are utilizing Chapter 46 in order to have the
County be the partner in this 201 G proj ect is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, urn, have there been any ... has the County
adopted or promulgated any rules to effectuate this as stated in HRS 46?
MR. KUSHI: Not to my knowledge administrative rules.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so it doesn't appear to me that we are using
the administrative rules attached to 201 G, urn ... that it had been duly adopted by
law and instead there's a ... an attachment to a letter of February loth, 2005, to
the project consultant which, urn, gives them an application process from the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns. Have you seen that Mr. Kushi?
It's in the environmental assessment. It's on, urn ...
MR. KUSHI: I'm sure it's in the binder. I have, I need to take some time to find it if you
could direct me.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Urn ... it is in ... I'm sorry. I ripped it out.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Anderson, urn ... the Chair would like to continue to move on. If
it's okay we will add this item, the 201 G process as a discussion item so we can
later today be able to discuss the process and respond to the questions that you
may have.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman, 'cause I think this
is an important issue. I mean . . . we need to know what rules and regulations
we're operating on and they need to be consistent so it's, uh, you know, a level
playing field, and I will yield ... not even a member of this committee and I'd
appreciate, I do appreciate your leeway but, um, I do have a question in that the
application process that has been submitted by the Department of Housing and
Human Concerns for this project states that, urn, units of 100 percent or less of the
median income shall be rental units and that's the first I've seen of that in here
and so that is a concern as well as others, but I'm happy to yield to another time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Member Anderson. We will add that item on
to the list of items to be discussed later this afternoon and we're gonna continue to
discuss issues relative to the Kahului, the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan. If
there's no other questions in that specific area, then we're gonna move on to the
next subject item. Thank you.
We're gonna move on to traffic, the bridge and then S1. Anthony, S1. Anthony
School.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, I did have a question on the community
plan.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This land is designated ag in the community plan
and, urn, I haven't seen an exemption from 205 HRS which is the State's zoning
district requirements and it's my understanding, Mr. Kuchi [sic}, Kushi that in
order to rezone ag land you need two-thirds vote of the approving body. Will that
apply in this case since I don't see an exemption for that unless I'm missing it.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi, able to respond?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, Member Anderson, I don't understand your question. What is
this now? We're not rezoning anything here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're not rezoning it. It's gonna stay ag land, ag
zoning?
MR. KUSHI: Correct. You're getting exemptions from the ag zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well ... but they're going, they're going to the
LUCA to get a District Boundary Amendment from ag to urban.
MR. KUSHI: That is a land district, uh, District Boundary Amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know Ijust said that.
MR. KUSHI: There's community plan designation, there's County zoning, and then
there's the land use district classifications. This process here is requesting an
exemption from the community plan designation, uh, it's exempt, it's requesting
an exemption from the County's zoning provisions. The third step is for them to
go to the L. .. , State Land Use Commission. You're not rezoning anything here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, they're rezoning the State district zoning if
they're going to the State Land Use District.
MR. KUSHI: State does not do anything about zoning. It's district boundaries.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, all right, whatever you wanna call it, but it's
in my mind it's State zoning as opposed to County zoning. But if the district
boundary, if the district zoning is gonna change from ag to urban, urn, then what
would be the status of the County zoning on this property 'cause that, ifit doesn't
change to urban for County then you have an inconsistency. Just for particular,
some of these large lots that are gonna be, urn, if they're gonna have State urban
zoning or district zonings, but yet stay in County ag zoning, then what would be
the permitted use?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.

HHS 08104105

Page 26

MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, let me try. Urn ... the underlying zoning for this property is
ag, County ago The underlying district boundary classification from the State is
State ago Community plan County is agriculture. This process here exempts the
project from the County district boundary ... I mean, County community plan
designation. They're requesting exemption from the provisions of the County
zoning ordinance, urn ... because of the project. Now the applicant needs to
proceed further if it does go through the State Land Use Commission to get a
change in district boundary for the property from State ag to State urban.
Assuming that happens, then the stars will be aligned according to the statutory
schemed. However, the underlying County zoning is still ag except for the
exemptions that you would approve in this petition. Meaning house lot sizes,
uses, etcetera, and they've been pretty much detailed in the proposal that you have
today. Meaning so many zero lot line houses, so many 10,000 square foot lots, so
many large lots.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the large lots would not be once this, if this
is approved and they get their State district reclassification the large lots would
not, would not be, urn, able to be re-subdivided in any way at all?
MR. KUSHI: I believe the applicant has stated in his application that they're not gonna
be re-subdivided. You need to check with him, but that's my understanding ...
the large lots.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members we're gonna move on to the next
area traffic. And I also would like to call Mr. Munekiyo to come on down and,
uh, take your position with us on the table in front, and the Chair would also like
to recognize the presence of Member Carroll who just joined us. Good morning,
Mr. Carroll.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members, floor open, open for questions.
Excuse me, Ms. Johnson.

Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's all right. Thank you for being here and I don't
know if this would be to you, Mike, or also to our Public Works, but I know the
concerns that have been expressed about the flow of traffic and then also the
concerns about the Imi Kala extension. I just wanna make certain that I
understand. Is Imi Kala and any of the improvements associated with Imi Kala in
any way a part of this particular application? Is it within our purview? Could you
address that question.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Council member, the Imi Kala Street extension when you look at it
from a regional standpoint consist of two parts. The first part being from Kahekili
Highway to Eha Street in the Millyard subdivision and that part is part of the
application. The second part that is outside of the application extends from Mill
Street to Lower Main Street that section which runs long St. Anthony School. So
what we are requesting with respect to the application itself is that the applicant
be permitted to construct Imi Kala Street from Kahekili Highway to the Millyard
subdivision only that segment only.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And to our Public Works Director, because of the
concerns expressed in testimony with regard to the actual project I gather that the
County is going to be undertaking or may not, depending on what I guess the
course of action is that you're pursuing, how would you address the concerns that
have been expressed? We did receive the letter and I don't know if you had an
opportunity to look at it from the diocese expressing their extreme displeasures
with proposed plans that have been spoken about in the paper. Can you address
those issues just so that we're clear and the public is clear about that aspect is it
part of the application, not part of the application, will there be another
opportunity for public testimony prior to anything being done in those areas.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Regarding Imi Kala extension from as it was
proposed between Mill Street and Lower Main, that is not part of this project.
The Administration had proposed to do that project in this past fiscal budget and
was ... the project was removed. Prior to the final decision we had met with the
St. Anthony board some time in either it was late January or early February of this
year. We showed them the plans and we went over the history of the project and
one of the member's there refreshed the other member's memory about past
agreements that they had made with a developer. Their original plan was to
relocate the school and I'm not totally clear on what they got in exchange for not
opposing I guess the, the application of that project. As part of our presentation to
the school board, we did show them that that same map that the Mayor had shown
the Members all the vast development, and he had shown the Imi Kala extension
and the potential impacts that it would have with the school. We at no time said
we were firm on the impacts, that we were certainly willing to work with the
school. We understand that the impacts that that extension would have is
primarily in where they have the shot put and discus pits. It's primarily in that
area and it does have a remnant lot adjacent to the old cane haul road. We did not
say we were firm in the location. We did say to them that we're looking at
possibly staging this project going with two lanes initially, and that ultimately if
traffic warrants we would then move on four lane. As far as the terminus on
Lower Main we did say that was fixed. We certainly, we provided them maps,
both of the proposed extension and the possible widening of Lower Main. We
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provided that to both, uh, the Maui diocese and also the Oahu representative that
was there also, we provided maps to both parties. And so we left it at that in our
discussions with them.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And then that process would be separate and a
part from anything that we're talking about here because that's not part of this
application?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And there would be a public forum in which
members of the community can raise their concerns and dialogue because this
would be an Administration project?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes. As it was shown during this current, the past budget hearings
that were held the school did come out again and, and in the public hearings and
did provide testimony with their concerns regarding the (inaudible)
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And if! may continue, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The bridge project then which ... and I did watch the
last meeting, I guess that was part of a satisfaction that was associated with the
Piihana subdivision in which should've rightfully been done by another
developer, but because this is being taken on now, how does the construction of
that bridge in your opinion, Mr. Munekiyo, how does that, even though it might
not be directly associated with ... because it's not within the confines of this
particular project area slightly outside it, how in your opinion does that help in
terms of the traffic circulation? Does it pose any additional safety issues? Does it
cause any problems or does it solve any of the existing problems? And I just
would like to hear what your opinion is.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I can respond generally and, urn, Mr. Chair,
Members, we do have our traffic engineer present as well who can probably speak
to the technical issues, but in a general sense the provision of that additional
connection across lao stream does provide significant relief to the, to existing
other crossings at Lower Beach Road, Waiehu Beach Road, and Market Street.
Of course under ideal situa ... , an ideal situation you'd like to have all of your
linkages completed and that is of course the entire Imi Kala Street extension, but
in this point, at this point I think what we're looking at is that bridge being able to
disburse traffic further from, away from Market and Lower Main. So I think at
least as an interim measure or more than an interim measure really it does provide
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some benefit in tenns of release ... relief and redundancy. And again we do have
our traffic engineer who might be able to explain things more specifically.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, it'll be fine if the traffic engineer will come on down and
participate in the discussion, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would really appreciate that, Mr. Chair, 'cause I do
have one other technical question in tenns of the traffic flow.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Good morning. Please introduce yourself for the record.
MR. NG: Hello, my name is Julian Ng. Traffic engineer working on this project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much. Because I've had concerns
expressed to me both at the meeting that we had in the Waihee School, I wanted
to find out what exactly the flow when you did your traffic analysis report. I
guess some of the people who looked at that, their concern is they live in the
community and they feel that the Waiehu Beach Road is still going to be
primarily used and that it's gonna create a traffic gridlock and nightmare. I guess
with the bridge construction, you know, I'm looking at it differently because, you
know, when I had to weave my way through the detour the other day at least
there's some circulation. Are there any other measures besides the bridge or are
there any other ways with the traffic flow in general that might be able to improve
the circulation to that area and address the concerns of the community when it
comes to Waiehu Beach Road?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Ng.
MR. NG: Thank you. As far as impact to Waiehu Beach Road, we feel that the project
will have a very small impact to traffic volumes on Waiehu Beach Road. The
impact of the project in comparison to impact of other growth in traffic in the area
will be very small. The addition of Imi Kala, uh, the bridge at Imi Kala will
provide additional capacity as Mr. Munekiyo had mentioned, you know, across
lao Stream, and as a rough estimate the bridge will increase the capacity over the
stream by about 50 percent because basically we're gonna have three lanes in one
direction instead of two going across the stream. As far as other impacts of
course bringing additional traffic through Imi Kala will have impacts to Imi Kala
Street and Imi Kala Street intersection with Mill Street. When we did our traffic
study we had assumed no further extension ofImi Kala Street, the project that had
been mentioned as a County project to extend Imi Kala from Mill Street to Lower
Main was not included in our original traffic study. And what we found in doing
the traffic study was that traffic along Mill Street would be changed because of
the opportunity to come over the stream at Imi Kala instead of at Market Street,
and the turning movements at the various intersection between Market Street and
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Imi Kala will change. Conditions basically got a little bit better as the traffic got
distributed, urn, you know, in two directions on Mill Street instead of everything
funneling through Market Street and turning on to the street or vice versa turning
left on to Mill Street in order to get across Market Street. And with these
alternatives, uh, the traffic volumes on Mission and Kaniela Street increased
because of additional traffic generated by the Hale Mua Project, and even on
Central our study indicated that the traffic volumes would increase if we were to
add the traffic generated by Hale Mua Project. However, conditions at the
intersections improved because of the changes in the left tum movements
basically.
As ... oh, in response to a comment from the Public Works Department on our
traffic study, we also looked at the situation where Imi Kala Street is extended
from Mill Street to Lower Main, and our analysis show that that extension would
carry a lot of the traffic coming across the stream on Imi Kala and that the
volumes on Central, Kaniela, and Mission would drop back down to volumes
which are ... they would still be higher than today's volumes, but they will drop
back down to lower volumes, to lower levels. Now, as part of our study we did
assume an increase in baseline traffic, and this baseline we're referring to is
without the Hale Mua Project, and that was based on the long range plan for the
island of Maui which was done of ... which was last done about five years ago as
a joint effort between the State Department of Transportation and the County of
Maui Departments of Planning and the Department of Public Works. And in that
study it indicated that traffic north of Wailuku would increase at a rate of
averaging approximately 2 percent a year so we've accounted for that increase in
traffic which, uh ... you know in comparison to the project traffic, uh, you know,
that 2 percent a year over the next 15 years compounded would end up increasing
traffic approximately 37 percent. The Hale Mua Project if we were to add the
Hale Mua Project traffic and this ... again, when we did our analysis we assumed
that all of the market lots would have two dwelling units each of ... that traffic
would ... or the Hale Mua traffic would account for approximately 20 percent of
the existing traffic so it would reflect an increase of about 20 percent.
Now, stepping back from the whole thing and looking at the (end of tape 2A) is
number one the Hale Mau Project even if its project were to be generated by full
development of the project which, uh, you know, we do not expect would happen
within the IS-year timetable, but even if that were to happen, that would increase
traffic by about 20 percent. Other developments that were expected in the area,
uh, indicated an increase of about 37 percent. Now, some of the Hale Mua's
increase could be part of that 37 percent, but in our analysis as I said we did not
take that into consideration so we just put the Hale Mua traffic on top of the other
increase and did our analysis that way.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And also because the school site or potential school
site has been spoken about was that potential where people would be traveling to
a school site which I guess would be located in, you know, within that area, was
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that taken into consideration or was only the existing school site taken into
consideration with regard to the flow oftraffic?
MR. NG: Okay, as far as the traffic study we did not include a school site in, within the
Hale Mua because that was something that came up after completion of our study.
So in terms of school trips we expected school trips out of Hale Mua to go, you
know, both north toward Waihee School as well as south into Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So assuming that, let's say something is able
to be worked out with regard to a schooi site in that iocaie that would, and correct
me if I'm wrong, that would improve the flow or the trip generation rates would
be decreased out ofthe subdivision?
MR. NG: The morning trips out of the subdivision would be, we would expect would be
decreased because any school trips could be contained within the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and one final question, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: With regard to the demographic, who would be living
in the subdivision? I know in other applications one of the arguments or one of
the I guess points that has been made is that there already people living in
crowded household in the region. Did you take into consideration that component
when you were looking at the traffic flow generated within the area as to people
that already reside in adjacent subdivisions but whether multiple households
living under one roof?
MR. NG: We recognized that occurred, but in doing the analysis we did not account for
that. You know as I mentioned we took the existing traffic, we took an increase
that was expected, urn, you know, even without the project and then we added on
top of that traffic that could be generated by the proposed project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much. I appreciate allowing
the extra time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If we can stay with that proposed bridge, maybe Mr.
Munekiyo can tell us the proposed bridge over lao is sufficient for four travel
lanes?
MR. MUNEKlYO: The travel lane configuration now as it stands calls for two 18-foot
lanes and so, urn, that would not allow for four travel lanes 'cause you've got then
a 36-foot wide travel way crossing the bridge. And if you assume, as an example,
11 foot wide travel lanes then at a minimum you're looking 44 feet.

HHS 08104105

Page 32

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just bring that up and, and I noticed we have
Director Foley. Because if this is to fulfill Piihana's Project District conditions of
zoning, one of their conditions of zoning, which you have not asked if we have
exemptions or waivers from our Ordinance 2051 which is County law, the
requirement is for a bridge sufficient for four lanes to be funded entirely by the
applicant. So what does that mean regarding this condition? It's not fulfilled and
thereby we should still expect expansion of this project scope?
MR. M1JNEKIYO: If the bridge is to be constructed as designed by the applicant and
would not permit four lanes and, uh, as required by the ordinance you cited
Council member, I suppose the option, if there is no intent to further widen that
bridge in the future, would be to amend the condition of zoning, and of course the
alternative would be at a future point in time to provide that additional lane at
probably some significant cost.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, that's the problem with this application. It is so
missed up with connections to other laws, to other projects, other
requirements ... you know this is not a easy application for us especially if we
just have to approve or deny it because of its relationship to so many other already
approved requirements by ordinance which is our laws. And I'm upset that we're
being asked to support one component of requirements of our community
affordable housing and to forget all the other parts of our laws or ignore it. I think
the church brought up a good point and that's one of the conditions of the
Ordinance of 2051 because there's a lot of conditions as regards to Imi Kala and
lao Stream.
But let me ask Public Works since we have our Deputy Director. Has already the
owner of Piihana Project District as required by our ordinance submitted that
20-year master plan regarding improvements for traffic, sewer, and drainage in
this whole area?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, ifI may.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. MIYAMOTO: To my knowledge of I have not seen the 20-year master plan as of
yet.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
laws.

So there's a lot of nonconformance regarding our

MR. MIY AMOTO: Mr. Chair, if I may respond regarding the bridge. I'm just looking at
what's in the, the, uh, draft environmental assessment regarding figure 10. It
shows a bridge, typical section that has two 18 foot lanes as stated by Mr.
Munekiyo, but it also contains two shoulders one on each side of six feet six
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inches with a two foot gutter pan. And so if one side of the shoulder, uh, the
sidewalks were removed you would have approximately 44 feet of pavement that
you could possibly fit four lanes in with having the sidewalk only on one side of
the bridge.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So Deputy Director you would say it is sufficient
'cause that's all our requirement is it be sufficient for four lanes.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, I would say it's sufficient for four lanes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, well, I appreciate that comment of you because
I will hold property owners to their agreements. I'm done ... Chairman, just one
last comment. If we are gonna open up ordinances to amend, remember now
what can be asked to be deleted we can add additional to also.
CHAIR MATEO: Point well taken. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson.
MS. ANDERSON: I'd just like to follow-up on, on Member Hokama's questioning
because it's disturbing to me also that this project is ... in order I guess for the
Administration to feel that it, it is a viable project it's taken on conditions of
another project. The Piihana Project District was approved with a whole specific
list of conditions, uh, in 1991 and, um, apparently none of them have been
fulfilled and, urn ... I'd like to know if there ... I don't know if anybody here
can answer the question, but I'd like to know what concession is the owner of the
Piihana Project District giving to Mr. Kim for taking on these very expensive
conditions, fulfilling conditions of his project.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo would you be able to respond to that?
MR. MUNEKIYO: The only thing I can comment on, Council member, is that the owner
of the Piihana Project District is dedicating the roadway right of way as part of the
project improvements and that beyond that I'm not sure what, uh, their intentions
are at this point with respect to the other Piihana road improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know Mr. Chair I think it would be very
helpful for us to know. I mean this Piihana District was a 50 percent affordable
housing project with a lot of homes that should be, that should've been built,
affordable houses that should've been built and, uh, so it seems like we're, we're
transferring conditions attached to this project to Mr. Kim's project so that his
project can be viable, um ... and then you need to look at the accumulative
impacts and will Piihana Project District be built out? You know I don't see it on
this, on this accumulative map that we've got. So the fact that it's laid dormant
for over ten years sounds like to me it's pretty much dead in the water and maybe
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what the Council should do is just reverse the entitlements on the land so that at
least we'll have some ag land left in this rural district. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? I guess to the traffic
engineer, in your list of exemptions, I think it's F2, urn ... can, can you provide
clarification on what, what this exemption is for? Here, Mr. Munekiyo right here.
And then while you're looking for that also to Mr. Ng, the response you provided
to Ms. Johnson regarding the trip, the trip generation and the numbers you
provided, was that also inclusive of the proposed ohanas as well the additional
units of the ohanas? Was that calculated into your numbers?
MR. NG: Yes, our numbers included ohana units.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you.
MR. NG: We had a total of700 units in the subdivision.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Mr. Chairman, uh ...
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Referring to exemption F2 and if I may read it it says that an
exemption from Chapter 19.45, Project District Processing Regulations, shall be
granted to permit the realignment of Imi Kala Street without the filing and
processing of a Project District Phase II and Phase III applications.
The Imi Kala alignment was originally, slightly towards the north and it had to be
realigned further south as shown in the application document so that driveway
distances between Puuohala road and the Maui Coun ... , Wailuku County Estates
driveway could be satisfactory met and these separation distances are more based
on engineering standards. When we realigned the Imi Kala Street extension
within the Piilani, uh, Piihana Project District, ordinarily that would require a
Project District Phase II approval as well as a Phase III approval from the
Planning Department. The Phase II approval is the Maui Planning Commission
approval; Phase III is, uh, an administrative approval by the Planning Department.
What we're asking is that the alignment be permitted and the road be allowed to
be constructed without those Project District processing approval requirements.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions in this category? Mr.
Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Taking a look at the traffic flow
coming out of Imi Kala and coming out of Market Street, did the developer ever
made a study count in regards to traffic coming from Waihee area on Market, uh,
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how many cars, you know, do travel, continue traveling towards Maalaea
direction?
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry go ahead. Go ahead, Mr. Ng.
MR. NG: Our traffic counts did not include origin destination surveys which would be
needed in order to determine if vehicles on Market Street were destined beyond
Wailuku they did not include.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Did not. Third question for Public Works. In regards to
the estimated traffic count come in, you know, should Imi Kala be extended from
Kahekili to Mill Street, uh, knowing that the increased in traffic would be coming
towards Mill Street direction also with the traffic from Market, um, yeah, on
Market coming towards Mill Street, uh, you know, I think we talked about the
three, uh, two streets that's between Central Avenue and Imi Kala. In regards to
Central Avenue, and I think what's gonna happen is that the traffic tie up between
Mill Str.. _, on Central between Mill Street and, uh, Main Street will be a very
congested one. Do the County have any plans in regards to providing any traffic
relief on Central Avenue?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO:
extension?

The condition that you're assummg

IS

without the Imi Kala

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
MR. MIYAMOTO: At this time there was to my knowledge there's nothing currently
planned, but as development progresses over the years of ... we would probably
be re-evaluating this and that's why one of the tools that we're really waiting for
is this transportation model that's being developed by State Department of
Transportation for the County of Maui and we would look to that model to help us
to evaluate alternatives along that corridor whether it be signal modifications.
We're hoping with the extension of Imi Kala we can help relieve that corridor
with traffic being allowed to bypass the central town area.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I note that the State of Hawaii had come up
with their STIP for upcoming years. Is there any plans in regards to improving
the roadway at Kahekili junction and Lower Waiehu Beach Road going towards
Kahului? I believe it's State highway_
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair. Yes, the roadway is controlled by the State Highway.
My last look at the STIP I don't recall seeing anything for regarding significant
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roadway improvements that would help increase the capacity of that corridor at
this time.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you don't know if there's any future plans five, ten
years from now ...
MR. MIYAMOTO: Not at this time. I might have to go back and check with staff on
that one.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. The Chair would also like to recognize the presence of
Member Molina. Thank you for joining us. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, because there's been a side issue of the, uh,
Piihana Project, I just would like to ask Mr. Corporation Counsel with regard to
any kind of conditions or agreement in that because that's a separate document
that is really not a part of this application, it's my understanding that that
agreement is between the County and the landowner or the landowners is that
correct?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, Member Johnson, the agreement that you're talking about I'm
assuming it's found in Ordinance No. 2051 adopted in 1991 and there was a
unilateral agreement that the applicant at that time, uh, Wailuku Ag Business,
signed and recorded and it's recorded against the entire Project District and, uh,
that it's a unilateral agreement and declaration for conditional zoning. It's not so
much a condition of the Project District which has its own ordinance. It was
condition of the rezoning. So it runs with the land. It's still enforceable by the
County and, uh, from what I gather is that some third party now is trying to fulfill
some of these conditions and the third party Hale Mua is not part of this
agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but in terms of actual enforcement on that
unilateral agreement the responsibility rests with the County of Maui as to
whether those conditions that are attached to the unilateral agreement are satisfied
or deemed not satisfied is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: Yes. As I reviewed the agreement and the conditions, there's various
triggers though, there's various triggers as to when these requirements have to be
made. Some of 'em deal with filing a 20-year master traffic plan, you know, the
question is when do you do that, uh ... building the bridge when ... when does,
uh, Mr. Carr or Wailuku Ag Business do that. So the issue of concurrency they
show a preliminary subdivision and I don't believe there's any subdivision
submitted in this Project District.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so if I understand you correctly, in terms of
Maui County enforcing or actually mandating that those conditions be fulfilled
under the unilateral, there may not have been a trigger generated this point in time
to actually require that those items be fulfilled is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, I have to disagree because there's
a trigger in the County Code that says all conditional zoning should be met within
five years, and if not the County has the right to take the bond money and do the
improvements themselves and/or revoke the whole rezoning. I mean it's what
almost 15 years since the Council put these conditions on this land, requested a
20-year master plan, and if that had been done, maybe we wouldn't all be in
gridlock right now. So, urn ... you know I think: that if, if the developer is not
willing to ... or the landowner who currently owns the land accepted the land
with these entitlements on it is not willing to fulfill these conditions and move
forward, then we should revoke the entitlement because this is not fair. It's not
fair in our planning process. It's not fair to the Council that sat here before us and
put these conditions on this land and, and ... and it's not fair that we don't have
the 50 percent affordable housing that this project was suppose to provide. So,
you know, if they wanna, don't wanna step to the plate and fulfill the conditions
on the land, then revoke the entitlement, turn it back to ag land, or Mr. Kushi, can
you tell us is there a bond on this property?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Urn ....
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean it's my understanding the Code says that a
unilateral agreement that has conditions such as this needs to have a bond. So I'm
wondering if he's checked that.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, I can answer that.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. KUSHI: From reading the unilateral agreement itself, not knowing the details what
happened after they passed it in '91, I don't believe there was a bond, but to, to
get more to the meat of it, you know, with all due respect to your office Member
Anderson, I wish you would read the Code entirely. Under conditional zoning
Section 19.510.050, subparagraph C, it states the condition shall be fulfilled
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within time limitations set by the Councilor if no time limitation is set within a
maximum of five years from the date the ordinance is in effect. What I've read to
you and what I've reviewed, the unilateral agreement in the agreement itself the
Council did set triggers. If it didn't set any triggers, then fine and well, you know,
go and revoke it, reverse the process after five years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you tell me where the triggers are because
I've read these conditions, Mr. Kushi, and I don't see the triggers that you say are
here.
MR. KUSHI: Okay, there's various triggers which, which one's do you want as to what?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, it says the applicant shall submit a 20-year
master plan approved by Director of Public Works prior to preliminary
subdivision approval. They haven't done any subdivision approval yet. Is that
what you're saying there's been no preliminary subdivision approval on this
property?
MR. KUSHI: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the reason they have not initiated any of
the, any of the traffic improvements or even the master plan for those
improvements is because they haven't initiated the project?
MR. KUSHI: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, it goes on under number three and it talks
about traffic improvements, and I don't see any, you know, preliminary approval
required any kind of trigger in that. No trigger for the bridge ... what other
triggers do you see, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Well, with, with respect to the Imi Kala extension from Imi Kala to
Kahekili Highway as well as the bridge, uh, as well as the bypass behind St.
Anthony School, they're all contained in section three of this unilateral
agreement, but the unilateral agreement calls for a master plan and in reading this,
urn, it makes reference to the master, 20-year master plan under Section 3-B, Page
2 of the unilateral agreement so, urn ... I'd say they're not ripe yet. I'm ... to
my understanding the developer has not moved one inch of soil on this project,
and if and when it does-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Fifteen years and they're not ripe?
MR. KUSHI: I can't speak for the developer, Member Johnson but, you know, when
they do then, then the County has some sort of, uh, obligations to be fulfilled and
it can enforce it and, urn, what the applicant here to my understanding is he is
requesting to do some of these improvements, uh, not totally all and not totally
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according to what was proposed way back when. The question now becomes who
gets credit for this? And if Wailuku Ag or it's successors Mr. Carr or whoever
comes in and wants to process or rejuvenate that Piihana Project District, I say
there's a big question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As to-MR. KUSHI: Probably I won't be here but, you know, you, you guys may be here
but ...
CHAIR MATEO: Member Anderson, just so we're kind of like bringing it back to Hale
Mua-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Fine.
CHAIR MATEO: --can you wrap up?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I'm finished with that Mr. Chairman, thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member Anderson. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I think how it relates to Hale Mua for us as
a committee is that if these things were done by the appropriate party, then Mr.
Kim would not have to be requested by the Administration to do it and thereby for
us you lower his overhead and possibly instead of 238 units maybe he could've
provided 350 affordable units. He's taking on added operational and overhead
requirements to either get administrative support for this submittal or there's other
things going on that we are not totally informed of Mr. Chairman, okay. 'Cause
how does that play into a January 25 th, 2005, letter from Mr. Carr to the
Administration to accept land from Piihana to fulfill that requirement of
affordable housing? 'Cause that means we're gonna be on the hook to start
performing the conditions in the unilateral, okay. Coincidence? I don't know, but
it's interesting the amount of facts involved with this application. Because my
understanding is Mr. Kim was willing to submit an affordable project only, okay.
The Administration asked him to add these things in return he'll be allowed to do
market development, and then we get this component from Hawaii Land and
Farm. Interesting component. And Administration knowing it's a condition of
zoning ask us to use taxpayers money to do Imi Kala improvement. What's going
on Chairman? You know like I said I wish this was a simple straightforward
project requests 'cause I think we can deal with it 'cause there's a lot of support to
get this affordable going. Why is it such a tangled web of so many different
factors?
CHAIR MATEO: Unfortunately, Mr. Hokama, the 201G process with its short, small
window of 45 days, and our inability to actually make changes or
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recommendations, and our inability to be able to be privy to negotiations and, and
set conditions, all of those items, Mr. Hokama-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Hearing you say that, if the Administration correct
that we can maybe address some of the concerns of our body through a unilateral
agreement. If that (end of tape 2B) that's half of the exemptions 'cause I don't
support eliminating Phase II, Phase III approval process regarding the bridge. I
think that's critical. The Planning Commission should have the opportunity to
review the actual specifics of the project. So what happens? Is that still a viable
document that the unilateral that we may request says to then delete or
exemptions requested will not be granted? 'Cause one of the key components on
the market, Chairman, is to have second dwellings, secondary dwellings, okay.
Agricultural zoning does not change. You've heard our Corporation Counsel.
That means only an ag-related dwelling can be built as a secondary structure, and
if it has no basis with agriculture it shouldn't be allowed under ag zoning, okay.
They've asked for exemptions of agriculture. We've heard Mr. Kim say he
doesn't plan to subdivide, but if it's not in the CC&Rs or some kind of legal
document, how can someone not ask us to approve a sliding scale request down
the road on the large lots? The zoning is still agriculture, Chairman. This is not a
simple request, Chairman. It's not a simple yes or no. 'Cause no matter which
decision we take, we're gonna get some group of upset people either those already
living in the district in Piihana, the businesses in Millyard, the church, the people
around Mission and Lower Main, or those that would like homes that they can
afford. This is a no win situation, Chairman. No win. I'm done.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Kushi, at what point ... you've heard
Mr. Hokama's concerns.
MR. KUSHI: Most of it.
CHAIR MATEO: At what point is it considered a substantive changes that would
jeopardize the application?
MR. KUSHI: Well, Mr. Chair, in the past we've taken, our office has taken the position
that the, urn . . . the Council should not revise or modify the listed exemptions
because it was submitted pursuant to the application and because of the fast track
process, etcetera, etcetera, you know, you've heard our position. We've also
token, taken the position that where in hearing such as this, there's discussions
and representations by the applicant that are not listed in the exemptions that are
either clarifications of their representations contained in the binder in their
application, but they're not listed and not addressed in the exemptions themselves.
We've taken the position that the Council can request the applicant to do a
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unilateral to, uh, bind the property with those representations. We've also said
that do not make it a bilateral agreement because then you're trading off
commitments.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank: you, Mr. Kushi. And to Director Lee, in your review process
with your Technical Committee, was these, were these issues part of the
discussion in terms oflooking at how Mr. Carr's project impacts Hale Mua?
MS. LEE: Db, Mr. Chair, we didn't really discuss Mr. Carr's Piihana Project District at,
at length because we were led to believe . . . in fact we were informed that the
Council was also informed by Mr. Carr that he did not intend to develop that
property. So we, we didn't spend an awful lot of time discussing what he would
have been obligated to provide.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank: you, Ms. Lee. Members, any additional questions? Ms.
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank: you, Mr. Chairman. I just wanna follow up
on what Mr. Kushi just said. So you're saying we've taken the position, in other
words you've adopted administrative policies in how to process a 201G
application through the County according to HRS 46-15 is that correct?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair. Member Anderson, no, that is not correct. Our office does not
adopt or formulate policies. We responded to a request from this body and we
gave an Opl1l10n.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, since 201G . . . HRS 201G-118 doesn't
provide for unilateral agreement how . . . or for any conditions of any kind any
changes to the application once it comes to the Council how have you ... on what
basis have you made that determination that we can do a UA which is basically
the same thing as conditioning it?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, rather than going into it, if Member Anderson and as well as
others would read our memorandum to Mr. Pontanilla that dealt with the Spencer
project, uh, the Council at that time requested that Spencer Development in
Waikapu to clarify his representations made regarding number of units affordable,
etcetera, and we address that in our opinion dated ... hold on ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Kushi, if you had that opinion if you could
provide it for us.
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MR. KUSHI: I have it right here dated July 23 rd , '04 and I'll ask your staff to make some
COpIes.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
County 201G?

And Mr. Spencer's project was also done as a

MR. KUSHI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And did he use the same application process that
Mr. Kim is using?
MR. KUSHI: Correct. Through the County Housing Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And have these application requirements been
adopted pursuant to Chapter 91 as rules or they just . . . something the
departments come up with and, and ... I mean, you know, in order to implement
46 and the authority it gives HRS 46-15 and the authority it gives the Council to
act as HCDCH would act, then we need to have implementing regulations and the
statute requires that so I'm just confused. This is the first time I've seen this, this
application procedure which it doesn't shadow what 20lG does. I mean the
application requirement here is basically an environmental assessment. So I'm
just wondering has this, these lists of requirements for an application for a County
20lG been adopted as rules implementing regulations?
MR. KUSHI: Uh ...
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, ifhe's, if she's referring to the County's department, Housing
Department's, uh, April 15 t \ '04 application process regarding Section 201G-118,
is that what you're referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Kushi I have a letter from, uh, February 10th ,
'05 letter to ... from Ms. Lee to Munekiyo, Hiraga which attaches a section
201G-118, HRS, application process, Department of Housing and Human
Concerns County of Maui, and then on the top right hand comer says revised
5/04/04.
MR. KUSHI: Urn ... the Director said it was minor revisions, but if you're asking if
those things have been adopted pursuant to 91 on rules and regulations, uh, not to
my knowledge. I'm assuming they're internal, internal requirements that the
Department would request any applicant before it even considers a 201 G, but the
answer is no. There's no rules or regulations on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And don't you think that, urn, State law requires
that we have legally adopted rules to implement a State statute? I mean it says
here in 46 that may adopt and promulgate rules and regulations which are
necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this section. And my point in
this, Mr. Chairman, is you know we should know, we should have a level playing
field. We should know what the requirements are. If the requirements for this
201 G application are not the same as the State's 201 G application, we should
know that, and it's not just the decision makers who need to know that. It's the
developer. And is it gonna be revised every time some one comes in and doesn't
like the requirement? I mean . . . we need to have . . . we need to have
consistency, we need to have regulations that are ... this is a critical issue, and to
have internal regulations that may change month to month, year to year, I mean I
would like an opinion on that from Corp. Counsel if, if we're violating State law.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, additional questions?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think when Councilmember Anderson was reading I
think one of the problems that we always have with State language is that the key
word is mayor shall. And as just read "may adopt" and that's where the problem
comes in. If the structure at the State level said "shall" that gives direction. It
gives clarity. When you put the wording in, that's where it creates the problems.
So I agree with Councilmember Anderson that it dumps it squarely in our lap and
of course in Administration's lap because it just is not clear. So I think it would
be helpful when the State drafts legislation and perhaps as part of our legislative
package or through HSAC we can actually make recommendations to strengthen
or introduce as part of our legislative package some wording that would at least
give us guidance to state that in the absence of such rules, because it takes so long
also to adopt rules, that in the absence of that what are we to operate under,
particularly when there's a mirror ordinance. So once again is the situation is
complicated because of the lack of this clarity and so I just ... I want, this is a
bigger issue apart from Hale Mua because it exists in all of our County process
201G application. So perhaps, Mr. Chair, that might be a good topic for
discussion within the larger subject, and I certainly think that these questions
deserve to be answered.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I would like to make a
clarification. The, urn, section that I just read regarding the County agency may
adopt and promulgate rules, may adopt and promulgate rules, that is in Section,
uh, 46-15, experimental and demonstration housing projects. In Section 46-15.1,
housing county powers, which Mr. Kushi is saying that the County is utilizing to

HHS 08104105

Page 44

an order, in order to allow the Council to have the same powers as granted the
Housing and Community Development Corporation pursuant to 201G, and there's
lots of clarification here, and I'm not gonna take your time to read all of it.
That's, that's just the basics. There's many clarifying statements and, and criteria
that follow that power that we are being given in this State statute, and I might
also add that nothing in here says that, that this, this really is to develop, construct
and provide low and moderate income housing. It says nothing about 50 percent
market, nothing, but under that section Mr. Kushi I know you have it with you
because you quoted it re ... , previously, um ... it does say adopt such rules
pursuant to Chapter 91 as are necessary to carry out the purposes of this section.
So, you know, I'm not here to be picky about this, but I think that if, if we're
going to adopt, if we're gonna use a process in an application that is different
from what the State uses in 201G-118, then it should be adopted by law and it
should be something that is consistent and, and that people can count on not just.
. . I mean as a decision maker I always look at the regulation to see that the
application fulfills the requirements because regulations aren't just there to be a
hoop to jump through. They're there to protect the public, the welfare of the
public. And so I just think that we need to be very careful in, in going off and
using our own application and not application process and application
requirements and ignore what's already been adopted by the State to implement
201G. And I might add also that attached to this application requirement ... it
reads as if it's, these are exactly what you would find in environmental
assessment all of these requirements. Attached to that is also a requirement to fill
out a HUD list, a HUD listing for description of materials and while I'm at it this
was a question I had. I ... Ms. Lee has asked them to fill this out and submit it to
actually reveal the cost of the housing. What is it gonna cost them to build the
housing. And we as far as I know, unless Ms. Lee can correct me, we don't have
the, these documents anywhere in our information that have been filled out by the
applicant because Mr. Chairman if, if we're being asked to give concessions and
exemptions to this project, then in essence we're, we're allowing the developer to
enjoy greater profit margin which hopefully then he's passing on to the affordable
units, but we should know that. We should know what those concessions are and
what the profit margins are when we're giving exemptions that the taxpayer as a
whole may, may have to end up paying for.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Member, Member Anderson, once again, the Chair with
approval of the Committee Members will add the 201G process at the later part of
the day so we're able to get a better understanding and you can ask your questions
at that particular point the, that option will be made available to the Members.
And at this particular point, the Chair would like to move on and return back to
the traffic, um, issues, traffic, the bridge, St. Anthony. And also at this point,
Members, we have in the, in the audience with us Sergeant Mitchell Pellazar from
the Maui Police Department. The Police Department during our Waihee meeting
was able to express their concerns and comments to the Members regarding the
project. If there is no need for Sergeant Pellazar to remain with us this afternoon,
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unless you have questions for him, I would, I would prefer releasing him from
sitting with us the rest of the day. Is there questions that the Members may have?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Has the officer indicated any change from the earlier
comments to the Committee, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama, I will ask Sergeant Pellazar to corne on down and you
can respond to Mr. Hokama's questions, please.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Please identify yourself for the record, Sergeant.
MR. PELLAZAR: Sergeant Mitchell Pellazar for the Maui Police Department.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Sergeant thank you for making yourself available. I
was just wondering if the Department's earlier comments regarding this request
has been revised or changed in any way upon hearing some of the additional
testimony and comments from this Committee's follow-up meetings?
MR. PELLAZAR: Okay, you're gonna have to excuse me. I wasn't present at the earlier
meetings I guess in Waihee or anything. So if you could refresh my memory as
far as what was said earlier I could elaborate from there.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman if you would for us, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, Sergeant Pellazar perhaps you can at this point share with us
your comments at this point relative to you representing the Department. What
are your issues and your concerns regarding the project.
MR. PELLAZAR: Okay, I was advised that as far as departmentally at this point we do
not support the project going forward at this time due to the traffic issues that you
guys are presenting now as far as the expansion or the extension of Imi Kala as
well as the connect up to Kahekili Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I thank you for, uh, your comments
Sergeant. Did you or the Department corne up with options of how to address
your, your Department's concerns that may assist the County in ... regardless
whether this project goes forward or not we have a traffic issue. So has your
Department provided some suggestions or recommendations?
MR. PELLAZAR: Regarding the traffic issue? I'm not sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, within the impacted areas of this project
request. So of course Millyard gets impacted, Lower Main Street gets impacted,
Market Street gets impacted, Waiehu Beach Road gets impacted, Lower Beach
access road from Wailuku to Kahului gets impacted, Waiale gets impacted. So to
me obviously this is an application that has maybe brought a lot more focus to the
concerns of this area, but nonetheless whether this goes forward or not we still
have the regional concerns whether it goes through Happy Valley, Piihana, the
impacts from Wailuku Estates, uh . . . lao Parkside, full build out . . . any
suggestions you can help us with should we ... that we need to maybe consider?
MR. PELLAZAR: Not having any kind of expertise as far as like traffic management or
engineering, I would have to defer on that at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments Sergeant, and I don't
mean to put you on the spot, but you are well aware of our County drivers
behavior with the existing road system-MR. PELLAZAR: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and the impatience of many of our drivers would
either use right of ways, part of shoulders and whatnot to try to circumvent
waiting for a safe situation to continue progressing forward. I mean we all see the
dangers at secondary roads besides primary road systems. So we're dealing with
a lot of road systems in this area, narrow roads whether it be by the St. Anthony
Church, Mission Street, its connection, uh, from Wailuku Post office, Imi Kala,
right in front of Tasty Crust, Hale Makua, uh ... so again, I ask you and I
appreciate your comments that you not the expert, but you deal with the daily
drivers behaviors in our region and if, uh, from what I see and I'm sure you see a
lot more of it is obviously a major issue for us. So I thank you for my part,
Chairman, I'm done.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama, and during the Waihee meeting
when Acting Chief Miyahira, I believe, spoke to us, the issues he raised was, one,
the recognition of the traffic problem that would exist, urn ... two, the department
would do what they could, everything that they could to alleviate the stresses; and
three, there was also need for additional manpower to helping dealing with
additional growth in the area. Those were the three items that were shared with us
during that evening, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for being
here. I'm sorry ...
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MR. PELLAZAR: Sergeant Pellazar.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank: you. Urn ... it's my understanding they're
gonna need a new beat to cover, to cover this expansion in the area, and that
would, that would consist of six officers is that correct?
MR. PELLAZAR: Urn ... I guess the request was actually the six officers for the entire
district of Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: An additionai ... one beat is six officers right?
MR. PELLAZAR: No, one beat would be just one officer. Currently the way our beat
geography is set up one officer currently takes care of I guess involving the
project area takes care of, uh, from Main Street going out to Kahakuloa up to
actually Nakalele Point that is one beat officer's responsibility at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One person. And so the Department feels there
needs to be six more people in that area, six more officers?
MR. PELLAZAR: I believe we're asking for two more in the Wailuku area and six
overall in the Wailuku district which actually encompasses Wailuku, Kahului,
Up country all the way out to Kamahina Park that would include ... that would be
the break up of the six officers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I know you're doing aggressive recruitment
program right now. Can you tell us what kind of success you might be having
with that?
MR. PELLAZAR: Uh ... I cannot ... I don't have that kind of information right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, someone, one of my staff member's called
the Department yesterday and they were told that the frontline officers, these are
beat officers that were short half of what we need. In other words we could use
twice as many frontline officers right now today than what we have. Does that
sound right to you?
MR. PELLAZAR: That might be correct.
percentages.

I'm not sure on the exact numbers or

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Morning Sergeant Pellazar.
Can you tell us currently right now how bad is the traffic situation out there and in
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terms of calls out there for, uh, to address concerns, urn, can you share with us
what the Police Department is currently encountering?
MR. PELLAZAR: In the proj ect area?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. I guess in general Waihee area in general.
MR. PELLAZAR: As far as the type of cases we're getting called for?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Cases and as well as the traffic situation?
MR. PELLAZAR: Probably the biggest complaint is just the reckless driving I would
say which I guess like Councilman Hokama, you know, stated earlier like, you
know, people just passing on the right or using the shoulder to try and get ahead
of other vehicles, urn, using the shoulder to get to the designated right hand lane
or going left of center to get into the left hand tum pocket we're getting calls on
that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And these are occurring usually during what times of
day?
MR. PELLAZAR: Usually it's in the morning as probably the biggest impact.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Rush hour time.
MR. PELLAZAR:
Highway.

Especially on Waihee, uh, Waiehu Beach Road and Kahekili

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the need for manpower I guess to respond to calls,
uh, do you have a lot of, a lot of calls out there in terms of, you know, for crime,
petty crimes?
MR. PELLAZAR: I believe overall right now, urn, you know, with the I guess the
subdivision moving further out, uh, especially towards Kahakuloa in that area, uh,
and I guess Waiehu Kou, you know, just the population growth in those areas.
Just to let you guys know, uh, we haven't, the Department hasn't increased our
beat manpower since 1986 yet increase in the population of course has been a
steady increase since that time yet we've only increased our manpower by one
officer in the whole Wailuku district.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. And ... , Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, thank you very much. I know in the past the
Police Department has testified that one of the challenges that they have in
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keeping manpower, even once they're trained here, is the difficulty in finding
housing, it exist island wide. Is that still a problem and a concern for your
officers to be able to find adequate housing in a price range that they can afford?
MR. PELLAZAR: I believe that's true for any occupation. And I guess that, that would
be a I guess, I guess an employment hope for to get more officers, you know,
affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any additional questions for the Sergeant? If there's no
objections the Chair would, uh, thank you Sergeant and there would be no reason
for you to spend the rest of the afternoon with us. Thank you very much.
Members, any last minute questions on traffic before we break-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, if I may, I've been putting off my question for
about two hours now. I would like to ask a representative from S1. Anthony who
can answer (end of tape 3A) understanding was and is of the extension between
Mills Street and Waiale or Lower Main.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Is there a representative from St. Anthony that could
come on down and participate with the discussion and respond to Ms. Tavares'
question?
(note: long pause)
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I know there was one other reference in an earlier
meeting about certain graduates of St. Anthony that sit on the Council, and I was
not mentioned in that group and my feelings were terribly hurt ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Laughter.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... since I'm a proud graduate of 1961 so now you
all know how old I am just as old as Bob, but anyway, thank you very much,
Father, for being with us this afternoon or still morning. Could you give us a
synopsis of what your understanding was or is of the extension on the cane haul
road or the acquisition and expansion of the cane haul road and when this
occurred, when you first heard about it and kind of just bring us up to date to the
present.
CHAIR MATEO: Father can you please recognize yourself first before responding.
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FATHER MALLEY: I'm Father Raymond Malley. Pastor at St. Anthony's. I've been
at St. Anthony since 1993, and so I came in when after this had all started. I
believe when Father Oyabu was there, uh, it was started in '90 or '91 somewhere
back there. So I came in the middle of it, and we understood by 1996 that the
project was canceled, and that there would be no, no road through there at all.
And then later on, urn, I can't remember what year, but anyway all of a sudden it
pops up again. The whole understanding for us was that it was going to be, uh, a
four-lane road which would take our thrift shop, possibly the band room, possibly
the athletic buildings and the high school, urn ... and then it would run through
the middle of the athletic field leaving one side ... leaving us with an island, the
road being an island through the field. A concern came up coup ... , maybe when
this started again, concern came about how much play space is required by the
Association of Schools and Colleges for Accreditation, and if that land was taken
away from us it could lose accreditation, and loss of accreditation means real
problem for those students who would want to, going onto college. And so all
these things are a part of our considerations, and it's for the church, and for the
school and then for the grade school. And also we heard about Lower Main being
widen and possibly taking part of the grade school property. So that's, that's what
I know.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So officially you have not received any word that this
road would be a two-land road?
FATHER MALLEY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
FATHER MALLEY: No, I have not.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Well, thank you very much for hanging
around and sharing that with us Father.
FATHER MALLEY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I appreciate it-FATHER MALLEY: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --and the ... for the rest of the St. Anthony people.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Member Tavares. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, ifI may ask the Father a question, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Father at one time the church, uh, my understanding
was that the church at one time was thinking of possibly relocating to a different
site and, and therefore in the current community plan there was about an
approximate 50 acre parcel that was, uh, designated for a potential new school
site. Was that the site that St. Anthony was considering at one point to relocate its
facilities to?
FATHER MALLEY: I think so, but it was not the church. It was the high school only.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh, just the high school only, Father.
FATHER MALLEY: Yes. Yeah. But the grade school and the church and the rectory
and all that was to be the same, would stay where it is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Would you know if that was in any way part
of a proposal by the old C. Brewer Company to the school in exchange for this
type of roadway traffic improvements that may have gone through the church's or
school's property?
FATHER MALLEY: Urn ... that ... the discussions were when Brother Dodd's(?) was
principal, uh, and he's been gone for five or six years now. I think, urn, most of
the discussion was with the school and yet, uh ... it is diocesan property's even
though it has to run through the diocese, urn ... so I think it was only discussions.
I don't think it was ever any kind of a decision except the final decision was not
to move.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, thank you for your comments, Father. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for staying
Father. During budget session this year the Administration was requesting
taxpayer funds to pay for the Imi Kala extension and folks from your church and I
believe you came also at one point came and testified against it, and we were
under the impression that the County was gonua be meeting with you folks to try
to work something out. So that's been since March. Have you had any dialogue
with the County or with this developer at all regarding their plans for Imi Kala?
FATHER MALLEY: With regard to the County, no, urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Since our, our budget session.
FATHER MALLEY: Yeah. No.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No one has tried to create a dialogue with you to
try to work something out that would be workable for the church?
FATHER MALLEY: Oh, from the County, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much for being here.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, additional questions? Maybe Mr.
Miyamoto, one question. Your reference to meeting with the Board of Directors
or the Directors of St. Anthony in February, March, uh, can you tell me whether
or not the ... who the Board was that you met with that, that Father has no idea of
any meeting of-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, that was before budget.
CHAIR MATEO: No, no, this was his comments earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: February.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, in February, March.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
budget.

No, I'm talking about after that period SInce

CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, I know that. I know that, but the reference came earlier to
budget time. So Mr. Miyamoto if you could comment.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, we had I guess at the request of the high school principal she
had set up a meeting at the school's library where the Mayor, myself, and the
division chief for our highway, our engineering division. All three of us attended
and gave a presentation to the Board. There were several members, urn, the
names obviously escape me, but the one person that I know was there was the
athletic director because I myself helped coach wrestling for St. Anthony so I
recognized the athletic director, and there was also a judge there present. And one
of the member's at the high school principal knows refreshed their memory, the
history of the agreement and whatever private discussions they may have had with
C. Brewer.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Yeah, Members, any additional questions for
Father? Hearing none, thank you very much. Thank you. Members, it's twelve
o'clock noon. The Chair would like for us to have our lunch break at this time.
An announcement that Ms. Johnson has her Parks Committee meeting at ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One thirty.
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CHAIR MATEO: At 1:30 this afternoon. This Committee will stand in recess until
3 p.m. this afternoon. Recess. (gavel)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:03 p.m.
3:05 p.m.

CHAIR MATEO: Meeting of the Housing and Human Services Committee will
reconvene. Members, good afternoon. For the record attendance this afternoon
Committee Vice-Chair Mr. Pontanilla; Members Tavares, Hokama and Johnson.
And our other Members participating though Nonmembers of the Committee this
afternoon with us Member Molina and Member Kane and Carroll. Good
afternoon. At right before our break we were getting, uh, we're ready to start
wrapping up the traffic ... the traffic, the bridge and the St. Anthony issues. We
still have the developer's traffic engineer with us. If there are additional questions
by the Members in this specific category the floor is now open for questions.
Thank you very much.
We going be moving on to the next area, and I'd like to make a change and, and
bring up the issue on the ohana dwellings. I've been notified that Mr. Foley will
be, has another appointment and needs to be leaving by 4:30. So if there's no
objections with the Members to have Mr. Foley come down join us.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, yeah, thank you.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Foley, thank you for joining us, and if you could provide us with
your comments and your understanding on the issues on the ohana dwellings on
the project.
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My understanding is that the ohana units
would be allowed on, uh, all of the market units the, uh ... the large agricultural
lots and also on the, the regular market lots which are proposed to be sold so the
maximum number of ohana units would be 228 which would raise the possible
total number of units to 694. And the ohana units on the ag properties would of
course be referred to as accessory farm dwellings, uh . . . because the ag parcels,
uh, the primary use would be agriculture and the secondary use might be farm
dwelling.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much Mr. Foley. Mr. Munekiyo would you also, uh,
will you also be able to comment on the same item on the ohana dwellings?
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MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We agree with Mr. Foley that in tenns of the
overall unit count once ohanas are placed, assuming that it's fully utilized on each
lot would be on the order of 694. However, we don't expect all of the owners to
take advantage of that ohana opportunity. However, all of our studies that were
conducted, uh, traffic study, water demand study, so forth, assumed the worse
case scenario and that is each market lot would have an ohana unit, urn ... but I
think as I said we don't anticipate that all of the market buyers will take
advantage of that opportunity.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, the floor is open for questions to
either Mr. Foley or Mr. Munekiyo. Mr. Foley, can you tell me if, regarding the
ohanas, these dwellings must be ag related as you're interpreting it?
MR. FOLEY: Only the one's on the large agricultural parcels. I think there are 19 ag
lots. On those 19 ag lots they would have to be fann dwellings or accessory farm
dwellings, but on the other 209 lots, uh, they could be regular accessory or regular
ohana units, and their size would be limited depending on the size of the lot so
they might be, have a maximum of 600 square feet or 750 square feet depending
on the size of those market lots.
CHAIR MATEO: And fann related would mean a fann hand, uh ... a fann employee or
is that the specific?
MR. FOLEY: Well, that's the theory. The ... in order to get a building pennit for an
accessory, for a farm dwelling on an ag lot you have to have ... submit and have
approved a fann plan which indicates that more than 50 percent of the property
will be in, in fanning or in conservation activity and, uh ... and then in order to
get a building pennit for an accessory farm dwelling, you have to approve that
you have implemented the fann plan, uh, but we don't inspect the accessory fann
dwellings to see if the, if the occupants are actually working on the property or
not. Sometimes they are, sometimes they probably aren't. We don't make that
kind of inspection, but we do inspect to see if there are fanning activities
occurring on the property.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, you know, this is, I'm gonna bring this up,
Mr. Chainnan, since we have the opportunity here because this bothers me a lot.
We're not following the County Code. This ag district zoning ordinance that was
passed in '98 it says that, urn ... one fann labor dwelling per five acres of lots
area on the island of Maui, the owner or lessee of the lot shall meet two of the
following criteria: one, provide proof of at least $35,000 of gross sales of
agricultural products per year for each fann labor dwelling on the lot as shown by
State general excise tax fonns; or two, provide certification by the Maui Board of
Water Supply that agricultural water rates are being paid if the subject lot is
served by the County water system; or three, provide a fann plan that
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demonstrates the feasibility of commercial agricultural production. And it seems
to me we're only requiring them to do the farm plan and that's only one of the
required two criteria. If Mr. Foley could speak to that.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY: The regulation you just read is, uh, related to a use other than the, the
accessory use of two farm dwellings per lot. If you read section 19.30A.050, uh,
on Page 582 of the Code, you'll see that under accessory uses it says two farm
dwellings per lot one of which shall not exceed 1,000 square feet of developable
area. That farm labor dwelling is in addition to the farm dwelling on the
accessory farm dwelling. That's for farm laborers which we have on a few of the
large ranches, but we haven't processed an application in the last couple of years
for a farm labor dwelling, and that's the one that requires the proof of $35,000 in
income per year from agriculture. So that kind of criteria is not related to the
farm dwelling or the accessory farm dwelling.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see, Mr. Foley. I thought you had originally said
that the second dwelling has to be a farm labor dwelling.
MR. FOLEY: No, I'm ... in did I was mistaken. It's an accessory farm dwelling.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So in essence-MR. FOLEY: The farm labor dwelling is for multiple farm workers like workers on a
large ranch like Haleakala Ranch or Ulupalakua Ranch, Mendez Ranch.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: One farm labor dwelling per five acres of the lot
area. So in essence somebody could have two farm dwellings plus an additional
farm labor dwelling for every five acres they might have. Could you, urn, could
you address why you consider these large lots to be ag lots and the market priced
lots not to be ag lots even though they're zoned ag?
MR. FOLEY: Well, this is somewhat repetitive to what Corp. Counsel said earlier, but
they are asking for a, a, uh, District Boundary Amendment from the Land Use
Commission from Ag to Urban, and we've, and we have notified Mr. Kim and the
State Land Use Commission that we would like the urban area to be limited to the
market lots not the ag lots. We have recommended consistently for months that
the ag lots not be converted to urban but be left in agriculture, and that appears to
be okay with Mr. Kim and with the Land Use Commission staff. The District
Boundary Amendment would change the remainder of the property to urban so
the conventional market lots and the affordable lots would become urban, and the
exemptions that they've requested exempts them from the community plan and,
and certain provisions of the zoning ordinance. So we would treat the, the
conventional market lots, the lots typically 10,000 square feet as, uh, as just
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conventional residential subdivision lots not agriculture. So we, we don't intend
to require any agriculture except on those 19 large agricultural lots.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you for explaining that. And so the
petition, Mr. Munekiyo, that will be going to the State Land Use Commission will
exclude the large lots from Urban designation?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Actually the petition has been filed, and as it is filed today it includes
the 19 large lots as lands subject to urban reclassification as well. So as the
application or the petition stands today, the entire project area is being sought for
reclassification to the urban district.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Does your client intend to write a letter
withdrawing that request for the large lots?
MR. MUNEKIYO: At this time, uh, we talked about it and he has decided to . . . or
retain the petition in its current condition.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that contradicts what we just heard from our
Planning Director, Mr. Chairman, and maybe Mr. Foley could answer this
question. Should the petition at the State Land Use Commission, urn, go through
and they receive Urban designation for the large lots, would they then be able to
subdivide those large lots to urban standards?
MR. FOLEY: Well, that's one of the reasons why we objected to them being classified
as urban. The petitioner has proposed that they would not be subdivideable
because of the CC&Rs, Codes, Covenants & Restrictions. However, the Council
is probably aware that CC&Rs can be changed at the whim of the owners, and
we've had situations where CC&Rs were changed to prohibit farming. So it's not
impossible for CC&Rs to be changed to allow some subdivision, and that was one
of the reasons why we recommended that the urban, urban redistricting not be,
include the ag lots and, uh, I've talked this over with Mr. Kim and, and, uh,
Anthony Ching from the Land Use Commission extensively and we had a
conversation with the Mayor and George Tengan who's here, and our
conversation was related to the need for the agriculture to be supported by
nonpotable water. And Mr. Tengan and Mr. Kim I believe have a written
agreement that, that water will be provided to the subdivision, but nonpotable
water will be used for agriculture. And at that discussion we reiterated that it was
our recommendation to the State Land Use Commission, and has been for months,
that, that the 19 large ag lots remain in Agricultural State designation and of
course they would remain in, in County community plan ag and County zoning ag
as well. That way we can, we can use our ag regulations on those 19 lots and
limit their resubdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if they were to stay in ag they would still be
allowed the sliding scale? Once it's subdivided this large parcel is going to
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become several . . . well, 19 individual parcels that would then be able to be
resubdivided using the sliding scale is that correct?
MR. FOLEY: Well, the sliding scale might apply, but I don't believe it will allow further
subdivision, and we would check the CC&Rs to make sure that resubdivision is,
is prohibited in the CC&Rs. We-COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Mr. Foley, you just said CC&Rs-MR. FOLEY: I know, but we can start with them being accurate and correct, and we do
periodically require review ofCC&Rs. We can do that with each building permit
in the future on those 19 ag lots. We, uh, we do check CC&Rs and ag
subdivisions because we've had a couple of situations where the CC&Rs
prohibited agriculture that should've been permitted.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just another couple more questions, Mr. Chairman.
The reason that this is a big deal to me is because the greater portion of this
project are these large lots. There's 133 acres comprising these 19 large lots. The
affordable housing land dedic ... , land there's only 27 acres dedicated within this
230 some acre parcel dedicated to affordable housing, and it's zero-lot line, small
5,000 square foot lots, Mr. Chairman, yet there's five times more land
surrounding this that's being dedicated to these large lots that could be
resubdivided using the sliding scale should by any luck they be retained in ag, and
God knows how many urban lot could happen if the petition as it's currently filed
goes through and they get urban designation. So I think this is a big deal, and I
would have hoped that the County in processing this application would have tied
that down so that we're not depending on CC&Rs that can change at the whim of
landowners. I would hope that the developer would've taken some of that 133
acres surrounding this project and maybe bump a little of it into the affordable
housing component so people weren't cramped together like sausages in this tiny,
little 27 acre parcel, um ... and ... I'd like to ask Mr. Munekiyo, why, why the
petition was filed prior to a decision being made by this Council.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Procedurally what initiates the State Land Use Commission petition
process is the filing of the petition together with the draft EA, and that document
collectively allows the Land Use Commission to begin its review and acceptance
or determination on the EA process. And so really the filing of the petition
occurred many months ago when the draft EA was initially filed with the Land
Use Commission. And at that time as with the final EA as well as the draft EA,
the project scope did represent that the entire project area would be reclassified to
the urban district. The applicant's intent with that notion was to ensure that no
further subdivision would occur on those large urban lands which would still be
County zoned agriculture as the Director mentioned, uh, and that would be, uh,
enforced through the deed restriction as well as, uh, if Council feels appropriate
could be a clarification through a unilateral agreement, but certainly the intent is
to not allow any further subdivision of those lands because from a planning
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standpoint, from broader planning standpoint the intent was to provide a fairly
smooth transition from the higher density, uh, 5,000 and 10,000 square feet lots
out towards the surrounding agricultural lots. So again, the intent is no further
subdivision of those urban lots.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
further subdivision.

Whether they are urban or ag there will be no

MR. MUNEKlYO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So your client has no problem with a condition put
on the lin ... , on these lands that they will never be further subdivided?
MR. MUNEKIYO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank: you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank: you, Ms. Anderson. Members, any more questions in this
area? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Foley, with regard to the ohana units I know that
it's been a bone of contention about utilizing ohana units as transient vacation
rentals. Can you address that issue in the context of this application and because I
know that we can't condition anything. And also because of this odd zoning
where its underlying agricultural zoning at the County level and with the District
Boundary Amendment that would give it urban, where does that leave the
requirement? 'Cause I know on R-3 there's no transient vacation rentals
permitted, but what happens in this particular case?
MR. FOLEY: Well, I can't recall any, any statements in the petitioners documents about
transient vacation rentals. There may be some statement about them being allow
or being prohibited, but I can't recall their intention at all. I, I don't know what
they, whether they have a statement about transient vacation rentals. I don't recall
it ever being discussed regarding this property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And Mr. Munekiyo then if you could just
address that issue.
MR. MUNEKlYO: The Director is correct. We did not in our application document
reference any prohibition to transient vacation rentals, but that is indeed the intent.
And so the idea here was to allow, of course the primary residential and the
accessory dwelling unit for long term residential purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Having heard that and I know you haven't spoken yet
with Mr. Kim about it, but because we're discussing potential things that may be
voluntarily included in a unilateral agreement, but in keeping with the wishes of
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both the community and the Council, would there be any concerns with regard to
putting in that type of component into the unilateral agreement?
MR. MUNEKIYO: I wouldn't think there would be.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, if you could by the time-MR. MUNEKIYO: We'll, we'll check.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. So that at ieast we can get an answer to that. I
think it would be important because this is the whole purpose in providing
affordable housing is to local residents. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we're gonna move on to the next item. The
next item on the list would be water and sewer. And we ... Mr. Foley, thank you
very much.
MR. FOLEY: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: So your appointment is at four thirty, yeah.
MR. FOLEY: Yeah. I'll stay until then.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. And Mr. Tengan, uh, could also come up to the front to
address some of the questions, and I guess I'll start off the questions to Ms. Lee.
First of all, I guess we've heard during the last couple of meetings that we've had
that Administration infers that water will be made available to the project, and at
the same time the Director of the department is not able to give the same
assurances that it will be made available. Can you tell me how the Technical
Committee kind of discussed this particular issue to be sure that this particular
project will be able to move forward with access to water.
MS. LEE: The Director of Water is gonna answer this much more adequately than
myself, but from the Administration's point of view, uh, this project is a priority,
but never once was the developer given guarantees of water. Based on the timing
of this project, if the project is approved within the next month or so and moves
through the Land Use Commission process, uh, favorably, then according to Mr.
Tengan's timetable they should be able to get water.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Tengan, Director, can you continue to comment.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair, and Committee Members. I believe that
what Ms. Lee has stated is true and that the Mayor relies on our reports to him
that we are working on sources and we hope to get these new sources on line in a
timely fashion. As you can see in our response to, uh, Munekiyo and Hiraga on
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February 15,2005, we do indicate that we are working on projects to get on line
and we hope to have these new sources on line by the year 2007.
CHAIR MATEO: And Mr. Tengan would you know what sources they are?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. As indicated in the letter, the connection of the Hamakua Poko
wells to the Paia system and we could even extend that line to the Central Maui
system boosting, uh ... or reducing the draw from the lao aquifer up to about 1.5
million gallons per day. We also, uh, are working on the Kupaa well which has
already been driiled. It's presently under contract to be outfitted. And we also
are working on the ordering of our new filtering unit for the lao treatment plant.
This will be done in conjunction hopefully with the approval of a budget
amendment by the Council to order filter units for Olinda and Lahaina whereby
we would be ordering three filter units so that we can get a price break on these
units. And we hope to place the order before the years end within the next couple
months or so.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Director. Members, any additional questions for the
Director? Mr. Molina.
COUNClLMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr.
Tengan. You mentioned the H-Poko wells, uh, that's the intention you're gonna
use as a source for the project.
MR. TENGAN: Well, it's a source to supplement what we're taking from lao and the
Waihee aquifers right now and to supplement our existing sources and not
necessarily to take that water and deliver it to the project itself.
COUNClLMEMBER MOLINA: So it won't be a primary source I guess.
MR. TENGAN: Well, it's a supplemental source.
COUNClLMEMBER MOLINA: How would that impact now ... currently the H-Poko
well is that used as I guess a backup in the event of say a drought in the
Upcountryarea? Would that have any impact by using H-Poko for this project or
this region would that have any impact-MR. TENGAN: Well, these two wells were originally drilled for the East Maui project.
The East Maui proj ect was designed to bring water from the Haiku area into
Central Maui, but because of a lawsuit the project was halted, but since the Mayor
got on board he's made an agreement with the people that were against the project
whereby we could connect the Hamakua Poko wells to the Central Maui system.
At the present time we do not have that connection to bring it down, but we are
under contract to put in the pipeline to make that connection to the Paia tank, but
for now we are using it as emergency source to backup the Up country system.
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Thank you, Member Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Tengan, there's a letter to,
urn, from the Department of Health to Mr. Munekiyo in April '04 and one of their
concerns, this is a pre-consultation letter for the environmental assessment, and in
their review they couldn't ... one of their concerns states, uh, we have a major
concern on the impact the project will have on the availability of water in Central
Maui. And then when Munekiyo guys responded they said that Hale Mua
Properties, LLC, has entered into an agreement with the Department of Water
Supply to provide funds for water system improvements. Can you tell us about
that agreement, please.
MR. TENGAN: What letter are you referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's going to be in the application ... in Chapter 8,
agencies consulted during the preparation of the draft EA, and it's
probably ... it's about the sixth letter in.
MR. TENGAN: I'm sorry, but I don't have the complete documentation on this project
here (end oftape 4A) is helping me out here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean, they say that maybe, maybe I should ask
Munekiyo guys. Mr. Munekiyo, excuse me, you stated or your planner stated in
your December 2004 letter that Hale Mua Properties, LLC, has entered into an
agreement with the Department of Water Supply to provide funds for water
system improvements. Can you enlighten us on that agreement unless our Water
Director can.
MR. MUNEKIYO: I'm looking for the letter as well, Council member, but I think what
the essence of the understanding between Hale Mua and the Water Department is
that to the extent required Hale Mua would provide whatever offsite
improvements the Water Department has deemed necessary to provide adequate
off-site services for the subdivision.
And right now what, urn, those
improvements include is the provision of up to 500,000 gallons of storage
capacity, additional storage capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you say that agam.
provide storage capacity up to ...

An agreement to

MR. MUNEKIYO: Five hundred thousand gallons of storage capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that would be in the form of a tank?
MR. MUNEKIYO: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you know the cost of that?
MR. MUNEKIYO: I do not. We do have our civil engineer here who probably can
speak better to that if the Committee wishes to have him speak to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So as far as you know there is no agreement even
though they say here in this letter that there is?
MR. MUNEKIYO: I'm not familiar with any agreement again except that it's an
understanding that this is what Hale Mua is wining to do, and again the definition
of what offsite improvements, uh, how it was arrived at this 500,000 gallons
would be needed, it really was a process where which involved engineering
studies and restudy, and so it's been a process in itself to define what it is that,
you know, we need to do to make the water system or infrastructure adequate for
the project, but in terms of how it's formalized I don't have any information on
that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Tengan, do you?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, if I may, urn ... what Mr. Munekiyo has stated is
correct. We, we do have an off-site requirement for the developer to participate
or construct a 500,000 gallon water tank. And I believe the developer has opted
to participate in the construction of the tank whereby our option we would do a
larger tank than the 500,000 gallons that's needed by the developer for his project.
As you can see in the letter, uh ... in of 2000 ... February 15, 2005, the
applicant's water demand for the project is about 415,000 dollars, I mean gallons,
uh, therefore we would make his storage requirements about 500,000 gallons.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one other question, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is this the only contribution as far as water? Are
they getting exemptions from meter costs and, and everything else, source
development, whatever, whatever else is necessary to provide water to this 230
acre parcel?
MR. TENGAN: The only, uh ... I wouldn't say exemption, but credit that the developer
might qualify for would be the storage requirement, uh ... the developer would
still need to, urn ... contribute or pay the water system development fee for the
source and transmission components. The water system development fee consists
of three components--source, storage, and transmission. In this case here the
developer is participating or paying for the storage portion so he would be entitled
to a credit for storage, and we would still assess him for the source and the
transmission portion of the water system development fee.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And Mr. Tengan how, how will you calculate that?
It's not, you're not including that in a meter fee?
MR. TENGAN: It's broken out in the rule, um ... I believe the source portion is, uh ...
it's about, uh, $2,000 for source and another $2,000 for transmission.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Two thousand per what?
MR. TENGAN: Per five-eights inch meter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Per meter.
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... theoretically ifhe has 690 ... well, let's say
he's not gonna have two meters on the market price. Even ifhe has ohanas it still
probably be one meter is that correct? You don't need a second meter for an
ohana do you?
MR. TENGAN: Not necessarily. It would depend on the fixture count of all the
structures on the property. It may be that a larger meter might be required.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then the developer is paying $4,000 per meter
for all of the units, affordable and market price.
MR. TENGAN: Without the rule in front of me, and I can't remember the exact break
down of the water system development fee, but I would say that, that's an
approximate amount.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: George, with regard to the fact that this has been a
designated water area, you know, all the, I guess the lao aquifer, because he
would be getting, uh, water out of the system, this comment was made by the
Commission on Water Resource Management that the applicant should work with
the County and incorporate this in the County's Water Use and Development
Plan, but I guess my technical question is there was a deadline for filing for
existing uses underneath that water management area. How would this be treated
then because it's not an existing it would be a new use? And would that create a
problem for them?
MR. TENGAN: Well, that's something I would think that the State Water Commission
needs to decide. As you ... you know as I stated earlier the new sources we're
bringing on line are not from the lao aquifer. It's coming from Hamakua Poko,
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from surface water, and from the Waihee aquifer. So I don't know that it's really
or it really pertains to the designation of lao.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, 'cause in their commentary they do talk about
that if they're getting-MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --their source from this particular resource.
MR. TENGAN: But I wouldn't mind if, uh, the State Water Commission considers this a
new, new use and, you know, it gives us an allocation beyond the 18 million
gallons per day we are allowed to take today.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So currently though it's not included in any of
the filings that have been made for the applications?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, thank you very much. We're
gonna move on to the next category and that'll be drainage. And perhaps if
Public Works could, uh, corne on down. Thank you, Mr. Tengan.
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, floor is open. Questions regarding drainage to
the Public Works Deputy Director.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can we have the developer provide us with an overview
utilizing the maps that we have regarding the drainage.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Munekiyo, uh, your engineer available to do as being
asked?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Yes, he is, Mr. Chair. Wayne Arakaki is the civil engineer for the
project, and if I may begin by referring Committee Members to Appendix H.
Appendix H is the drainage and soil erosion report in the final EA which was
included as part of the application document. Again, Appendix H of the final EA.
(note: long pause)
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MR. ARAKAKI: Good afternoon, Council members. My name is Wayne Arakaki, civil
engineer for the project, and I'm here to-CHAIR MATEO: If you can please speak up.
MR. ARAKAKI: Wayne Arakaki, urn, I'm here to explain about the drainage systems
for the proposed project. If you can refer to map at Appendix G, and there's a
map that shows the drainage areas and the drainage systems that we want to, uh,
that's being proposed.
This particular project is surrounded with soil(?) waters. On the west side we
have that Sprecks Ditch that flows all year round. It's, it runs about 15 million
gallons a day and it's running about half capacity. On the north side is Waiehu
Stream and it runs and at times when there's drought there's no water, but it is a
substantial source of water also.
The drainage improvements that we are planning to do is mostly onsite. We have
aside from catch basins, drain pipes, we also have several culverts that crosses the
road. Weare using the parks as, uh, like a detention ponds and various grass
swales that's located within the subdivision. There's two drainage channels that's
between the affordable and the market houses on, on, on the project site. There's
also another drainage channel that's located along Kahekili Highway.
One of the concerns that I had while I was designing this drainage system was the
water that was, that possibly could have come from Sprecks Ditch. I talked to the
sugar company and they told me that the water that's being diverted into Sprecks
Ditch comes from Waihee and Waiehu. They have several controls on the upper
portion ofthe lao Valley that would control the amount of water that's going into,
into the ditch. As I said earlier they're running about 15 million gallons a day. If
there should be a storm it can adjust that and the capacity of this Sprecks Ditch
can handle up to 30 million gallons of water per day. We have several detention
ponds to take care of the increase of runoff due to the development with the
residential development. And also, urn, if you notice that the, on the right side of
Waiehu Stream we have located the larger lots that would sort of buffer against
the residential lots. The 100 year flooding additional(?) limits follows the larger
lots and it doesn't go into the residential area. Any questions?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Urn, thank you Chair. The basins between the
development itself will be collecting the runoff as far as within the subdivision?
There's ... one, two, three ... four basins.
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes, it will. The basins vary in size but, you know, one of the major
safety concerns is the depth, and we've managed to keep that anywhere from
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three to six feet. The basins will be fenced off, fenced so that there wouldn't be
any kind of hazard to children playing in that area.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Should the drainage, drainage basins overflow, uh ...
MR. ARAKAKI: If the drainage basins should overflow, if you notice it's located along
Waiehu Stream so it can be diverted into the stream area.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, thank you very much for being here. The ...
the question I have would be on the lands that are on the perimeter of where the
housing would be both the market price housing as well ... I guess there's realiy
only two small parts on the affordable component. Because there's no idea of
what would actually be farmed in these areas, is there any intention or is there any
consideration to reduce I guess the sheet flow, you know, down into the
subdivision like let's say if you had all kinds of the macadamia nut trees there
now and all the trees are removed and there's really a beautiful low-growing crop
put in, how would you intend to address those issues because it'll basically be
surrounding all of the urbanized development.
MR. ARAKAKI: On the, urn ... we have, we are planning to construct grass swales or
drainage swales at the lower site of the existing Sprecks Ditch to control ... in
case there is an overflow as a safety measure we're gonna use that to control that
runoff. And also above the market lots, the 10,000 square foot lots, there will also
be a drainage swale. So water should not encumber the residential properties.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Even the large agricultural lots it shouldn't impact.
MR. ARAKAKI: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so what you're gonna do is you're gonna
basically interrupt any sheet flow then that would come down on to those
properties which would subsequently come down into the urban core?
MR. ARAKAKI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: One more question. Who's gonna control the gate in
regards to controlling the number of gallons flowing into Spreckels Ditch?
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MR. ARAKAKI: Wailuku Sugar Company or Wailuku Ag Business have a, have the
personnel that monitors that on a daily basis.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So they will be the one's that will monitor and ensure
that no more than 30 million gallons per day goes to the ditch?
MR. ARAKAKI: Currently it's 50 million gallons. They did confirm that they use only
half the capacity of the ditch.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Arakaki, from what I can see, and again, I'm it's
not clear, but on the Piihana side of the project on Kahekiii Highway is that
culverts that crosses Kahekili Highway?
MR. ARAKAKI: There's a four feet (inaudible) to the culvert that crosses Kahekili
Highway. We're gonna be upgrading that with a triple barrel culvert. It's gonna
be five feet in diameter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know I know you deal with this a lot more so
can you explain what is a triple barrel culvert?
MR. ARAKAKI: All it is is just three culverts in a row as oppose to what's there now
it's just a four feet culvert.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And then and the water that goes into these culverts
will go where?
MR. ARAKAKI: It follows along, along the, urn, if you'll notice it just follows along the
existing stream. I guess on the foot of Waiehu Heights.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And has either Health Department, Land and
Natural Resources, or anyone else the depart ... , EPA have any concerns about
what may go into the natural stream flow from the subdivision regarding types of
materials?
MR. ARAKAKI: We have-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: HAZMAT materials, uh ...
MR. ARAKAKI: Urn... we have detention basins that would collect the sediment
before it goes down stream, and there is on Basin A there is a basin there fronting
the existing culvert. There is none right now so we'll be installing a basin there to
take care of any kind of soil erosion before it goes down stream.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And the drainage that connects, uh, the proposed lao
Stream bridge to Piihana Road you mentioned you only gonna cross Spreckels
Ditch in one area. Is that between Piihana and lao, or Piihana Road and Kahekili
Highway ... what part of Spreckels Ditch that you anticipate crossing over?
MR. ARAKAKI: The Sprecks ... yeah, this is on Figure 8, we're gonna be crossing
over between Kahekili Highway and Piihana Road.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. 'Cause I just you know reading through the
report. Your road will not cross over any existing drainage ways, except for the
Spreckels Ditch. So I just was wondering where, where ... and its drainage from
the road system how are you handling that, please?
MR. ARAKAKI: We're gonna be impiementing dry wells within the shoulders of the
road.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Throughout the whole road, roadway from Kahekili
to lao?
MR. ARAKAKI: Whatever is necessary that would Increase the, urn, due to the
development whatever runoff that's increased.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And this is a, I would assume a minimum of 32 feet
wide road according to our requirements from Fire and Police and anyone else?
MR. ARAKAKI: The road is, urn, the right of way width is 60 feet wide.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Sixty feet wide with 32 feet paved.
MR. ARAKAKI: And then 36-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thirty six.
MR. ARAKAKI: --pavement.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is there any additional flow going into lao from the
project through, through your engineering proposal Mr. Arakaki?
MR. ARAKAKI: I'm not proposing any kind of runoff into the lao Stream.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Into lao itself?
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Arakaki.
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MR. ARAKAKI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Regarding the, the drainage basin as
well as the dry, dry wells on the Kahekili Highway, is those, uh, basins as well as
the dry wells be turned over to the County for proper maintenance?
MR. ARAKAKI: The detention ponds within the subdivision would be, urn, would be
the responsibility of the association. The dry wells within the road on the Imi
Kala extension would be turned over to the County.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
Deputy?

Can I ask a question to the Public, uh,

CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to the dry wells can you tell us how effective
that thing will be?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Obviously any new dry well will obviously work very well in the
beginning, but as it fills up with silt and trash that it collects from the roadway
surface obviously maintenance is gonna be necessary to bring it back to its
capacity and design. It was one of the comments that we provided on that design
that we would work with them to try and see if it was an alternative method that
could reduce the maintenance required on that system.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you tell us what are some of the options that is
being considered.
MR. MIY AMOTO: Yeah, the primary option is probably gonna be available is probably
creating some kind of a basin along the edge of the roadway of some sort to, to
capture the additional amount and control it before any additional increase into
lao Stream.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. A question of Mr. Munekiyo.
Mr. Arakaki mentioned that the wells would be I guess paid for by the association
fees. How much are the, will the residents be looking at paying? Do you have
that figure at this time?
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MR. MUNEKIYO: I don't. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, just curious to know. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you very much, Members. We're gonna go into
the next area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One, one question, please, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Regarding dry wells and Piihana Road, that area
where the . . . you mentioned the dry wells for this connector that will cross
Piihana Road, uh, how close would it be to existing homes there that are on
Piihana Road, Mr. Arakaki, would you know?
MR. ARAKAKI: Urn ... I would say the-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Like hundred feet away-MR. ARAKAKI: I would say the closest home is about 200 feet away.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Two hundred feet away_
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And your estimation assuming the dry wells are
working well and we all know about Mr. Pontanilla's concern with dry wells in
Kahului, uh, where we are gonna be spending millions to get this corrected, uh,
what's the potential ofthese homes being damaged?
MR. ARAKAKI: I would say zero.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I hope you're right 'cause I would not like to
look at claims and settlements down the road. And that's assuming that the dry
wells are maintained on a regular maintenance schedule basis?
MR. ARAKAKI: One of the problems with the earlier dry wells is that filter fabric cloth
wasn't available. So what would happen is that sediment would get between the
gravel and then there would be no percolation in the wall.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
MR. ARAKAKI: But now with this new filter fabric cloth, the sediment and (inaudible)
you know cannot, urn, go between these gravels and gravel provides at least 30
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percent of empty space where water can collect. So I feel that using that kind of
cloth I think it should be more effective than what it was before.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And again, if you can just tell, inform us this
afternoon, please, what would be your understanding of the design of capacity of
the dry wells? You know like so many thousand cubic feet of water or so many
liquid thousand, you know, gallons of water that would be the capacity ... how,
can you explain to us how the design and capacity works.
MR. ARAKAKI: Usually as a rule ofthumb I would say like 3 cfs per acre.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So that ... what would that be, please, Mr. Arakaki?
MR. ARAKAKI: You know really I, you know, I don't know the correct, the surface
area of that extension but it would be designed based on some about 3 cfs per acre
and an acre is 43,000 by 60 square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right.
MR. ARAKAKI: So whatever-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So let's say you know the last major rainstorm we
had whereby, you know, areas of Mr. Pontanilla's district got flooded again,
would that kind of rainfall be a concern for the system you're helping to design
that would be, that might impact Piihana area?
MR. ARAKAKI: Usually when we design our drainage system it's a 50 year one hour
storm, and if it goes over the amount, the drainage design is always to expect an
overflow and that overflow would go into lao Stream.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Into lao.
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes. But again we follow the standards which is a 50 year one hour
storm on the design.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, okay. So the sloping and grading of the system
is geared to naturally go toward lao then with the road system-MR. ARAKAKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and the drainage program.
MR. ARAKAKI: Yes. First of all, the runoff would be collected in these dry wells, but
ifthere's an overage over the 50 year one hour storm then it would flow into lao
Stream.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, thank you. Thank you. Because part of, you
know, your earlier comments before the 50 year, uh, the 50 year thing is brought
up about the existing runoff for the 100 year flood and so . . . why would the
determination be made for that 100 year flood which seems to come faster than
100 years?
MR. ARAKAKI: The 100 year floods is required on any major drainage area. So on
Waiehu Stream we have designed flooding (inaudible - background coughing) of
a 100 year storm, and also for the culvert crossing on Kahekili Highway that is
also designed for 100 year storm.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Again, my concern is because I
have enough family that live in Piihana that I, uh, have been asked to be
concerned about drainage. Thank you, Mr. Arakaki.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any additional questions? Thank you.
We're gonna move on. Mr. Miyamoto, thank you very much. We're gonna move
on and this particular item is essentially for Corp. Counsel and for the developer's
representative. And this is just to get comments regarding the issue of clear title
that we have been hearing about for the last couple of meetings. One, if Mr.
Munekiyo would be able to provide comment to the Committee relative to your
particular ongoing proceedings in addressing the clear title issue, and then for
Corp. Counsel if you can just comment on implications for the County on clear
title and I guess in regards to this particular project. Mr. Munekiyo.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Chairman, may I ask Tom Leuteneker to
join me. He is the applicant's attorney who is working on the quiet title process.
CHAIR MATEO: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, just a point of information.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The last subject that we had was regarding drainage,
but is the same individual also gonna be present if we go over wastewater?
CHAIR MATEO:
both ...

Mr. Munekiyo, does the, uh, Mr. Arakaki also the engineer for

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Drainage and wastewater.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Mr. Chairman, he'll be available to address wastewater questions as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Sir, if you can please identify yourself.
MR. LEUTENEKER: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Tom
Leuteneker. I am an attorney with Carlsmith Ball, and I am assisting the Hale
Mua in connection with the quiet title action and with its title.
CHAIR MATEO: Sir, if you can please share with us information on how the current
landowner is addressing the issue of clear title that has been bought up on several
occaSIOns.
MR. LEUTENEKER: Yes, sir (end of tape 4B) Hale Mua has a deed from Wailuku
Agribusiness to all of this property. The title to all of the property is not entirely
clear, and we know that because Title Guaranty has given us a title report and
some of the titles to some of the Land Commission awards are broken. So that
although Hale Mua has a deed entitled to the property, some portions of it are
presently broken. Mr. Kushi, on my right hand, commented the other day at the
first meeting of this Committee which was July 27th that the question of complete
good and marketable title is not necessarily entirely relevant to this particular
proceeding. However, when the time comes that Hale Mua applies for a
subdivision of this property it then would be necessary for Hale Mua to have a
good and marketable title. Actually put another way when ... my understanding
of the ordinances when anybody comes in for a subdivision all owners of the land
that is being subdivided must sign onto the subdivision application. So at the time
Hale Mua comes in for a subdivision either it will own all the land or if there are
other owners that we know about then they will sign on to the application.
Now, we heard from Mahealani Ventura-Oliver this morning. I have a
letter ... well, first let me say, I have filed an action to quiet title to the land
commission awards with the broken title. Mahealani has not filed an answer in
that case although of course she's free to do so, but she has not done so yet. What
she has done is to send me a letter with some attachments to it, and Ed Kushi has
a copy of that letter and he referred to it the other day, urn ... Mahealani said this
morning that something to the effect that all or part of this land isn't owned by
Hale Mua because the entity that granted the land to it didn't own it, namely
Wailuku Agribusiness, and she went on to say that, and I'm going to read from
her letter in a moment so that I know this is indeed her position. She said that
Wailuku Sugar Company essentially disc ... , Wailuku Sugar Company, being a
predecessor owner, essentially disclaimed any interest in this land back in 1925.
In her letter in one place she says . . . and, and I think Ed can make this letter
available to you if you'd like it, but she says on Page 3 Wailuku Sugar Company
gave up any claims on the subject property in 1925 and therefore is barred from
transferring these properties in one transfer and thereby any . . . she goes on.
Anyway, the essence of it is that her claim is that Wailuku Sugar Company gave
up any claims on the subject property in 1925 and she attaches to her letter a
document which is a boundary certificate application. And this is an application
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filed by Wailuku Sugar Company in 1925 for a certificate of boundaries for a
portion of the ahupuaa of Waiehu and the IIi's of Ahikuli and Pohakunui of the
said ahupuaa of Waiehu. And ahupuaa it is a large, is a Hawaiian name for a
large tract of land and this, this project is contained within the ahupuaa of
Waiehu. In ... when the Kingdom went through the Great Mahele in 1848 and,
and deeded, uh, that was, that was the a change from essentially a futile system to
the common law system. And the Kingdom after 1848 deeded property in fee
simple which is the system that we presently have which is the common law
system. There were so many applications for lands and so few surveyors that
some lands were deeded in fee simple by name only. There was no metes and
bounds description, and there was set up a commissioner of boundaries, there was
a Boundary Commission set up which was a procedure whereby a landowner
could go to court and ask the court or essentially ask the boundary commissioner
to establish the boundaries. And this 1925 proceeding is an application to
determine the boundaries of the ahupuaa of Waiehu. This, this petition says on
the second page . . . actually the second page that she, that, that, um . . .
Mahealani provided, it's actually Page 62 of the court proceeding and I ... and
there's one short paragraph and I'll read it. This is a quote. "The petitioner is
saying the Wailuku Sugar Company is saying to the Boundary Commission that
no inquiry or determination as to the boundaries of kuleanas, etcetera, located
within or partly within this portion of the ahupuaa, ahupuaa ofWaiehu and the His
of Ahikuli and Pohakunui is sought by the petitioner". So what Wailuku Sugar
Company was saying we're applying a boundary certificate of the ahupuaa, but
we're not applying for a boundary certificate of any of the kuleanas located within
the ahupuaa. All the land commission in the ... they didn't have to apply for a
boundary certificate for the land commission awards in the ahupuaa because just
about every land commission award has a metes and bounds description with it so
there's no need to get the boundaries determined. So what the applicant, the sugar
company was saying is we don't want a boundary certificate for our kuleanas.
We only want it for the ahupuaa. That is far different the statement that was made
that by this document the Wailuku Sugar Company was disclaiming its interest in
the land commission awards. It did not disclaim its interest in the land
commission awards and this language in this application makes that quite clear.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, could I ask a question for clarification.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're saying land commission awards, but the
reference is to kuleanas. Could you explain the difference between the two.
MR. LEUTENEKER: Land commission award is identical to kuleana.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's no difference?
MR. LEUTENEKER: No, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The word applies to the same piece of property.
MR. LEUTENEKER: Yes, it does. Although, although the word kuleanas as we know
applies to other things. It's somebody's kuleana to do something, but kuleana is a
land commission award.
For the purposes of our discussion they're
interchangeable, yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I have seen maps that reference land
commission awards on a parcel, and then separately on another parcel call it a
kuleana lot. So it's always been my understanding that they are two different,
uh ... designations of a lot or land ownership.
MR. LEUTENEKER: I believe that they are the same and interchangeable.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All right, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: If you could summarize it, please, so wrap it up at this point.
MR. LEUTENEKER: Yes, urn ... let me try to wrap it up. As I said there's a deed in
May of 204 [sic} by which Wailuku Agribusiness deeded all of the land that it's
in the petition to, urn . . . Hale Mua. The, urn . . . the kuleanas, the land
commission awards that have broken titie there are eleven of them. They
comprise about 40 acres of the property_ For the most part ... and I can go in to
great detail, which is not appropriate here, into what kinds of broken titles there
are. For the most part the broken title problems are more technical than actual
and serious, and what they are is, and this is very common, an individual owned
the property and died and had no probate. He died owning it, had no probate. In
those early days lots of people didn't know about probate so they didn't have
their, their estates probated. And so that's a break in the chain of title because the
title is in an individual he dies, he didn't deed, he has no probate, but he had deeds
reported in the Bureau of Conveyances that say, that say for instance I am the son
of so and so. And so the connection is made by recitations in deeds and their
ancient documents, those recitations are clearly admissible and evidence under the
Hawaii Rules of Evidence, and they tie up the chain. In the old days the title
companies use to say those kinds of recitations were good enough for us. The
title is good. Now, if there's any kind of break, the title company requires us to
go, uh, into a quiet title action so that for the most part those ... the breaks that
caused the titles to be broken are technical.
Now, one more point and that is, is there anybody out there that is claiming an
interest in any of these land commission awards. There is one claim that I know
about, made by a gentleman, we're exploring that, uh ... Attorney Brian Jenkins
filed a claim. It's the only one that we know about so far, urn ... there's no one
else that we know about that has used these lands other than Hale Mua, before it
Wailuku Agribusiness, before it Wailuku Sugar Company. There's no one else
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beside Hale Mua on the tax records. Title Guaranty has checked the Bureau of
Conveyances. They've checked the court records. They've checked other
records and our own paralegals in Honolulu have checked the records and there is
no presently recorded document recorded any place that gives anybody besides
Hale Mua an interest in this property.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: If you could, you could again comment regarding the issue of clear
title regarding the County's exposure in the event that clear title is, is, uh, not
confirmed on the property since the County is co-applicant with this particular
application.
MR. KUSHI: Well, Mr. Chair, as to the mechanics of obtaining clear title I think Mr.
Leuteneker summarized the steps correctly. He's far more knowledgeable in
about these things than anybody in our office is and, uh, I think they're gonna go
and proceed according to what they feel is necessary to get a certificate of title
from a title insurance company.
As far as the risk to the County, let's talk about process first. Mr. Leuteneker is
correct in that in the event they cannot produce a certificate of clear title backed
up by Title Insurance Company to the Department of Public Works, uh, the
Director of Public Works should not be issuing any subdivision approvals so that
stops the train in its tracks.
As far as exposure by the County, by all of you, by all of us, all the department
heads, uh . . . it's not to say we can't be sued. Again, in this process the
201G-118 statute itself says no action shall be prosecuted against any of the
County officials, employees, etcetera, in reviewing or approving such
applications.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any questions for Corporation Counsel? Thank you very
much. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may ask the applicant's attorney, you
did mention that there is a attorney that has filed a claim or has informed of ...
MR. LEUTENEKER (spoke away from the microphone): I can't remember ifhe filed an
answerable-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you use your microphone, please, sir.
CHAIR MATEO: Please use your microphone.
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MR. LEUTENEKER: I'm sorry. Yes. I can't remember if he sent me a letter or if he
filed an answer but it is, he is going to make a claim to one of the land
commission awards.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. To have that claim resolved would that be part
of a Circuit Court or Land Court proceeding?
MR. LEUTENEKER: It would be part of a Circuit Court proceeding. What we would
do among ourselves the attorneys is try to determine the validity of the claim. If
we determine that it's not valid, the claim would, it's gonna be withdrawn no
doubt. If we determine that it is valid, the particular individual that has an interest
in one of the land commission awards, we have to deal with that. And the way we
normally deal with that, and we're normally successful, is we negotiate with that
person to buy his interest because it's gonna be an undivided interest and he's not
under the law going to be able to get a separate lot because he has only an
undivided interest.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So more than likely it wouldn't go to a Circuit
Court process whereby a judge would make a ruling?
MR. LEUTENEKER: If we cannot reach a agreement, yes, sir, we go to the, we go
either for trial or a motion for summary judgment and the circuit Judge would
make a ruling.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: In your estimation what would be the type of
parameters of time it could be resolved within weeks or it could take as long as
half a year, one year, to get this type of issues or concerns resolved? Do you have
a feel for it, sir?
MR. LEUTENEKER: Urn ... most often in these cases we are able to agree. By we I
mean the plaintiff in the quiet title action and the defendant claimant are able to
agree because we understand the law whether or not an individual has a claim.
It's rarely, it's rare that we, we both have different positions that we cannot
resolve and therefore need to go to trial. If we have to go to trial, urn, we will be
able to get to trial within six months. Most likely within six months of the time
we conclude we're not able to agree on this particular claim.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, I'm asking the question, Chairman,
because our understanding of when, should this be approved this request, the
delivery of the affordables and our understanding of the sensitive of time as it
relates to material costs, construction costs, labor costs, and how would then we
will be assessed to of course the future purchasers of the project. So I'm just, I
was just curious if this delays it another year then the affordables that we had
anticipated in 2007 would be 2008 and again who knows what the construction
environment would be.
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MR. LEUTENEKER: Let me just comment. I'm very conscious of the fact that there's
severe time constraints, and we're going to operate with that understanding. And
if we're at a point where the lawyer, the other lawyer and I cannot agree on the
claim, urn, we may, we may very well because we have these time constraints,
and because we think it's so important to get this project on the way, you can see
the point to the claimant agree has a claim and deal with it rather than going to a
trial which will cause delay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for your comment, sir.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Leuteneker,
you're, you are an expert in, in title, clear title law. Correct? I mean ... you
apparently are the expert on this panei up here today.
MR. LEUTENEKER: I been, I been practicing law in real estate for more than 35 years
in Hawaii and I've concentrated on quiet title work so I know a lot about it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. So could you give me a legal citation that
says kuleanas and land court awards are one in the same and interchangeable.
MR. LEUTENEKER: I probably could find it. I don't have, I don't have it with me.
One thing we need to be careful about though the properties that we're talking
about it in this case where TG, Title Guaranty, says that the titles are broken are
land commission awards, and you look at a tax map and you're gonna see LC ... ,
you're gonna see LCAW and then a number, those are land commission awards.
Those aren't the only kinds of lands we have in Hawaii. We also have grants.
There are some other ones, but basically it's land commission awards and grants.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, I don't wanna confuse the issue
because my concern is this 1926 document that excludes kuleanas. And so I
wanna know why ... where the legal citation is that says land court awards and
kuleanas are one in the same and are interchangeable.
MR. LEUTENEKER: I'm going to get that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I appreciate that.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, at this time at the call of the Chair I think
we're ready for a recess. We're gonna take a ten minutes recess at this time.
Members, thank you very much. (gavel) Recess.

RECESS
RECONVENE:

4:26p.m.
4:39 p.m.
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CHAIR MATEO: Members, thank you very much for the, for that break. We left off
with Mr. Leuteneker and his follow-up with the clear title issue. Members, before
we dismiss him are there any additional questions you'd like to ask? Thank you
very much, sir. Thank you very much for participating in our discussion this
evenmg.
Members, we're gonna continue on. At the last meeting Mr., uh, Member
Pontanilla had a question for Finance and, urn ... Mr. Young. Okay, we'll, we'll,
he stepped out for a little bit so we're gonna bring him back Mr. Pontanilla so you
can question him.
I also see we still have in the gallery with us the Deputy Director of Parks. Mr.
Buck has been here all morning waiting for his moment. The issue on parks at the
last meeting I think we had all understood that there really wasn't an issue
anymore because this particular project in far as meeting their parks requirement
has gone over, you know, what is actually required. So if there are no more
questions relative to the park, uh, for Mr. Buck, I would like to release him at this
moment. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, can I just ask a question and if, maybe Mr.
Buck can comment. I had thought that there was a question of whether or not the
drainage basins could be also part of a park to ... that could also satisfy part of a
park requirement-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --especially if you know 95 percent of the time it's
gonna be dry per se under normal situations, and I think that's how we've
advanced some improvements at Kuau Bay View regarding the catchment or dry
basins.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you. Mr. Buck, welcome. Did you hear Mr. Hokama
question?
MR. BUCK: I think in maybe the, urn ... Mr. Munekiyo can correct me if I'm wrong,
but I think the two areas the retention basins that they're considering park land is
the, the two smaller parcels that the association is using and the ... where most of
the majority of the play is gonna be, uh, the 5.3 acres which does meet their
requirements for the park assessment, and again, I am not really sure if there's a
retention basin inside that five acres I'm not really sure.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo would you be able to expand on it?
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MR. MUNEKIYO: Mr. Chair, I think it might be better if I deferred to our civil engineer
again if the Chair wouldn't mind.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Arakaki, Arakawa [sic].
(note: long pause)
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. And if you could please, Mr. Arakaki, please re-introduce
yourself.
MR. ARAKAKI: Wayne Arakaki, uh, civil engineer for the project.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MR. ARAKAKI: The detention ponds are not part of the park areas, and again, the
reason being is because it's a safety factor. Our detention ponds will have chain
link fence surrounding the area. I do have the large park, the five acre piece.
There's a culvert located at the, uh ... at the entrance of the park but it's gonna
sheet flow on the park area, you know, to take care of the irrigation for grassing
when there is rains, but in heavy storms the water would collect in the detention
ponds so I don't want to use that as part of the park area.
CHAlK MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And Chairman, thank you. All right, thank you, Mr.
Arakaki for that clarification because our understanding is that for ... let me get
this right ... I believe detention basin B there's 128 acres as we understand it in
the submittal and of course that is a very sizeable drainage basin I guess is the
more appropriate term and I had just wondered if that was ... could also be
utilized as part of potential recreational uses. And again, I just looking at
section ... Appendix H.
MR. ARAKAKI: It's a ... you know let me clarify that. Drainage basin B actually is,
urn, what I did was I took the whole area of the, part of the large agricultural lots,
residential area, but that whole basin B empties into the detention ponds that's
located at the intersection of Waiehu Beach Road and Kahekili Highway. So
basin B is actually the subdivision itself, a portion of the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, so, so that's okay, just so we get it very clear
then. On Page 4 of Appendix H, uh, when basin A ... 31 acres that is also part of
the subdivision and not the actual size of the drainage basin itself?
MR. ARAKAKI: That's right. It's part of the, it's considered like a sub-area for
drainage basin that's, uh, so I can determine the size ofthe detention ponds.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, okay, okay, okay. So we're, uh, you're dealing
with the four areas, A, B, C, D, 31 acres, 128 acres, 24 acres and 30 acres?
MR. ARAKAKI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakaki.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any more questions in this, in this area? Thank you very
much. Thank you very much, uh ... go ahead, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair. Because we had the wastewater issue, if
we're through with parks I did ... I don't know if he would have to answer
anything in wastewater or ...
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo, is this the same engineer that will be responding to
questions on your wastewater?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. We're gonna, uh, move on to wastewater.
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: un ... yes and I don't know ifit would be for you to
answer it but I'll ask it of you. In the wastewater plans that you have that serve
this particular subdivision, because I notice at the upper end, like some of the
elevations are like 225 feet, 275 feet going up, it's really steep, how are you going
to be addressing, uh . . . is it with lift stations or how will you address the
infrastructure with regarding the wastewater that's going to be I guess handled
throughout the subdivision?
MR. ARAKAKI: Urn ... the average elevation for this particular subdivision from the
mauka side down to Waiehu Stream, it averages about 6 to 7 percent. There's
some areas that it goes up to 12 percent. In comparison like Wailuku Heights
which can go up to maybe like 23, 25 percent. So actually it's a very subtle type
of slope for this particular project. We are required to put manholes every 300
feet and that, that would create some kind of control as far as the flow of the
wastewater. Everything will be flowing down hill to the pump station which is
located close to the detention pond that's located at the intersection of Lower
Waiehu Beach Road and Kahekili Highway. Then we're gonna have a pump lift
station located in that area. The size of the pipe will be 12 inches and it would be
installed along Kahekili Highway heading in the Happy Valley direction. At the
intersection of Kahekili Highway and Imi Kala, we should be able to gravity feed
back to Eha Street on, in the, at the Millyard.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And you have sufficient capacity at this point in time
where perhaps Mr. Chair it might be better directed to our Public Works Director.

HHS 08104105

Page 82

CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair. Yes, the treatment facility, the treatment plant currently
has a capacity of 7.9 mgdm [sic}. We currently running around the 5 mgd rate
right now five million gallons per day, and the collection system that crosses lao
Stream along with the collection system that heads, that collects that area down
towards the Wailuku pump station is currently has ... with the installation of the
Wailuku Parkside and lao Parkside subdivisions, additional capacity was added to
the lines that feed down towards the Wailuku pump station.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Now with accumulative housing that has been
occurring in that whole entire area, is there still in anticipation because I know
these homes are not on line, other housing has not yet been completed like
Waiehu Kou. How will that affect the capacity? Will we still be even
anticipating that this comes on line to let's say a maximum number of units,
assuming they have the ohanas, will that still be sufficient capacity?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Miyamoto.
MR. MryAMOTO: Yes, in the iate '90s, early ... mid to late '90s there was this
hydraulic study that was done and it was coordinated with the Planning
Department regarding potential development in this whole area. And the one area
that we probably gonna see a capacity problem in the near future is along Waiehu
Beach Road at the Hawaiian Homes pump station. We currently at 49 percent of
capacity. If you take in to rain events and people opening manholes and water
getting into our system, it would be kind of close to 100 percent capacity. So
we're working with Hawaiian Home Lands to effect some modifications and
improvements to provide additional capacity along the Waiehu Beach Road to the
Wailuku pump station.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members ... Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. With all the growth in the Waihee area, uh,
everything flows to Y. Hata and then from Y. Hata it goes to the treatment plant.
Your transmission ... the transmission line from Y. Hata to the treatment plant
are we at capacity or how many more homes can we take on that transmission
line?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair. The Wailuku pump station actually not only collects the
Waiehu and the Waihee and the Wailuku area, it also collects some of the Kahului
area. So right now it's designed to carry a lot of capacity. The existing
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forcemain, which was built in the I think it was in the '70s is a concrete pipe. So
we have a project currently funded for replacements of that forcemain with a ...
and we're gonna increase the size by (end of tape SA) 21 inch pipe we're gonna
increase it to 24 inches. The pump station was modified in the ... I think it was
just before I got here which was 1999 the modifications were complete, and so the
pump station has certainly has more than enough capacity to put the additional
increase out.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions in this area? Thank
you very much Mr. Miyamoto. Mr. Pontanilla, the, uh, your question regarding
that we would require the Finance Director to be here, uh, since he is not, if it's
okay with you I'd like to provide your question if you can provide it to staff in
writing and we will be able to forward it to the Director and get a response for
you in writing.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, the last item was a request this is a
request from Ms. Anderson, uh, whether or not the Committee would approve
discussion on the 201G process. Members, it's, it's your call. I'd throw it out to
the floor whether we should do discussion on the 201G process at this point. Mr.
Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I can just bring up one item before-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --the Committee takes up consideration. One of the
things that ... and I thank the applicant representative as well as Mr. Munekiyo,
but is it too late be ... , I know you folks are gonna go back to the Land Use
Commission some time in the near future. Is it too late for this application to ask
for State exemptions that could also be of benefit? In particular one of the things
that I would, uh, you know, I think the County should also receive is of course
exemption from the excise tax on purchases of materials for the construction of
affordable projects. Is that too late for, for you folks to request from the State
Land Use Commission?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because I would consider that sizeable dollars of
potential savings. We always ask the County to provide subsidy, and I think in
this application we're looking at about three quarter million dollars of subsidy,
uh ... so is it really affordable or just subsidize housing we're talking about?
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MR. MUNEKIYO: To, uh ... in respond, Council member, as you know we filed this
201G application through the Council and via the Administration separately. As
you noted the State Land Use Commission has its own 201G process. However,
rather than go through the 201 G process with the Land Use Commission and
discussing with the Land Use Commission it was agreed that we would instead go
through the traditional process non-201G and they have given us their assurance
that they would do their best to fast track the process. So unfortunately we have
no application before the Land Use Commission for a 201G application.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But in the district boundary application
something they could grant? Is that within their authority to, to grant?

IS

that

MR. MUNEKIYO: I would defer to the Corp. Counsel, but I wouldn't think so. That
would be just a top of the head response.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And again, Corporation Counsel, Mr. Kushi, I don't
know if you are, are willing and able to give a comment, but if you care to I
would appreciate it.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair. Member Hokama, under the 201G, chapters of201G-116,
there's a section called exemption from general excise taxes, and basically you
know it speaks for itself, you know, it says any corporation ... the corporation, in
this case the County, may approve and certify for exemption from general excise
taxes any qualified person or firm involved with newly constructed or so and so
project developed under this subchapter so there are provisions for if they come
under this section, subpart that the department upon request can sign off.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So it's still a possibility ... that's what my question
is, is it still a possible exemption to, to consider for this request?
MR. KUSHI: It's part of the statutory scheme of, you know, it's one of the benes I guess
of this process and it's, uh ... it doesn't need to come for approval of any body.
Once it qualifies then the developer could apply for an exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I'm taking it as potentially it can qualify and
receive exemptions from the State general excise tax regarding the affordable
component, Mr. Chairman. And I would ask you know Mr. Munekiyo I would
ask your client to please if this does move forward that that is something I think it
is worthy to pursue and try and get approval of ... thank you, Chairman. I just
was curious about we are always the one's asked to give up or subsidize regarding
this type of considerations. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, again, a request, a request from
one of the, one of the Member's, a non-Committee Member requesting discussion
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on the 201 G process. I asked the Committee Members whether or not, uh, your,
uh, approving this discussion as being requested. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and although I'm not a Member,
thank you for allowing me to participate. If the question is to talk about the
process of 201 G, then we must ask ourselves is this what was posted and the
public is available to comment on this discussion that is being requested. If it's
not something that's part of the posted agenda, which was required by the
Sunshine Law, then I you know I as one person would pause and reflect on that
and say are we providing the public through the Sunshine Law requirement an
opportunity to comment on what we are here to discuss. And if it's not on this
agenda to discuss the 201G process, not the application that's before your
Committee, but the process, then I would say no because then you're cheating the
public out of the opportunity to comment as well. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Point well taken. Before I recognize Member Anderson, Mr. Kushi
could you also comment?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair, I haven't even thought about Member Kane's point, and maybe
that should be directed to your Council staff about Sunshine Law issues, but I
could ... you know since I'm here and since we're all here I don't care if we
discuss it but ...
AUDIENCE: Laughter.
MR. KUSHI: Just get it over with I mean you know ...
CHAIR MATEO: Our legal counsel. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, urn ... certainly want us to stay within the
Sunshine Law and I appreciate Member Kane's concern. However, the way this
is posted I think we're fully within our rights. In fact we're probably obligated to
discuss 201G because it's posted, HRS Chapter 201G, affordable housing project,
uh ... a proposed resolution entitled "APPROVING THE HALE MUA
AFFORDABLE HOUSING SUBDIVISION PURSUANT TO SECTION 201G,
HAWAII REVISED STATUTES". And what I wauna discuss is this pursuant to
201G-118? So I don't think that we're outside the matter that's posted on our
agenda. If we can't discuss the application and the requirements of the
application for this project without stating that in the agenda, I mean, come on.
Every time we had a change in zoning we all pull out Chapter 19 and cite sections
of that and ask for clarification and that's all I want.
CHAIR MATEO: So Ms. Anderson to expedite the process ... to expedite the inquiry at
this particular point, would you be able to forward a request to Corp. Counsel
asking their, uh, them to opine on the process and whether or not the current
process we're engaged in is in fact appropriate and I guess your, your concern
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would be legal so at least that way you'd be able to have it in writing because at
this particular point Corp. Counsel will not, is not able to give us a specific
response so that might be at this point your resolve in getting your specific
questions answered.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'd be happy to do that, Mr. Chairman, but
there's other questions I have. I mean ... it isn't necessarily of a legal nature in
regards to this application, and I think Ms. Lee would be the person who would
have the answers.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members, once again, it's up to the call of the Committee. Do
we, do, does the Committee wish to continue discussion relative to 201G as Ms.
Anderson is requesting? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, and I know we have gone through
this before with past 201 G applications, and I totally appreciate the questions that
Ms. Anderson has because I think at one time or another we've all had them. I do
have a problem though because to me it's the bigger issue of our County process
complying with all ... or at least as far as I understand it complying with all of
the I guess the mirror process under the State, and are we complying with State
law? And I just feel that the overall conversation that we're engaged in in that
regard should take place in a bigger forum because I have read comments in the
paper about other Members besides Ms. Anderson raising the same issue about
the process itself. So I personally would prefer to have that in the bigger context
because I would really like to discuss this application before us. And although
we've been asking questions about it, although we've been talking around it, I just
would like your direction as to where we're gonna go from here because, you
know, I would prefer to make a decision ... if we're going to be asked to make a
decision today and have clear focus because we've been going at this since nine
this morning and even before that, uh ... that's my personal preference. What
other Committee Members want that's fine, but that's just my take on it.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, thank you.
comment? Mr. Pontanilla.

Any other Committee Member would like to

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I gonna await your recommendation.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If Ms. Anderson has a question ofthe process and she
can tie it to the project, Chairman, then I have no problem. As long as it relates to
this Hale Mua project I think it would be appropriate.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Question? Any comments? Mr. Anderson, uh, Ms.
Anderson followed by Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, I have no intention of raising
questions about the process in general and, you know, I appreciate the caution by
some of the other Members but they don't know what my questions are so I don't
know how they can pass judgment on what I'm gonna ask. My questions have to
do with this project and the process that this project is being processed under in
conjunction to this project. And if I can't ask questions about this project, then
I'll just hold it for Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I thought I was clear in my comments
regarding if it's about the bigger picture of the 201 G process, then we must look
at our posted agenda to see if, if it's there and it allows us to move forward or
allows the Committee to move forward. So I hope my colleague from South
Maui doesn't draw a conclusion that I've drawn any conclusion about her hne of
questioning. She made a point about the process of 201G and I just simply ask
the question can we do so by what we have in front of us as a posted agenda. So I
just wanted to provide clarity, urn ... it's caution because we've gone through
this before, Members, on talking outside of the scope in the past, and it carne back
to bite us, uh, we, you know, with respects to the Sunshine Law so anyway I just
wanted to bring that forward. If the ... to me if the question is about the proj ect,
you know, I think you've already asked for Members to ask questions about the
project so ask the questions. I going have one other question before you folks
make a final recommendation, and I don't know if now is the appropriate time,
but I'll yield until it is an appropriate time to ask a question that I have that's
outside of what has already been discussed relevant to the project.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Okay. Ms. Anderson, the Chair will exercise caution, and
if you can keep your questions specific to the project, then I'm ready to discuss
the project versus the process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't want to discuss the process, Mr. Chairman-CHAIR MATEO: Then go ahead, go ahead and ask the question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I want to discuss the project-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, go ahead and ask your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --in regard to it being pursuant to 201G, I mean
that's the regulatory framework that we are being presented with in approving this
project, and I think it's totally relevant that we discuss it-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, ask your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --in relationship to the project.
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CHAIR MATEO: Ask your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I mean ... first of all, I don't, I really
don't think that this project is pursuant to Section 201G-118 of Hawaii Revised
Statutes. It's pursuant to Chapter 46, Hawaii Revised Statutes.. 46-15.1.1,
housing county powers. Our, our Corporation Counsel told us that we are
invoking the power that the County is given under this section, and in order to do
a project that gives us similar powers in 201 G. And I will pursue this further not
to take up this Committee's time, urn, with a letter to Corp. Counsei regarding
this. And so to cut to the chase, I'd like to know in this application that was, urn .
. . presented to the Department of Housing and Human Services, urn, pursuant to
the application parameters that they laid out, which have not been adopted
through the administrative procedure act, and are not legal rules and regulations,
which Chapter 46 requires, I'd like to know . . . there is an attachment here for
description which, which is the HUD requirement for description of the project,
urn, the construction materials and whatnot. And this, this, urn . . . just so the
Members would know ... the project ... this is Ms. Lee's letter attached to this
application, urn ... description. The project section 201G-118 HRS application
must also include the preliminary specifications for the affordable housing units.
That being the case, it is suggested that a description of materials form (copy
attached) be completed for the two house models and included in the
environmental assessment.
Ms. Lee, were these applications submitted,
completed and submitted?
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Lee.
MS. LEE: Yes, they were I believe completed but these ... and I'm gonna defer to Corp.
Counsel about what you say are illegal, uh, guidelines, uh ... the applicant-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I didn't say they were illegal, Ms., Ms. Lee. I just
said that they had not been adopted through the legal process, but I don't think we
want to get into that today. Everyone doesn't wanna talk about the process. I just
wanna know if ... where I can find these forms filled out.
MS. LEE: Well, Mr. Munekiyo can help you with that 'cause he filled it out, but I just
wanna say that just for your information that this application is the same
application that was before you with the Hale Mahaolu 201G process, and the
Helani Gardens 201G process, the Spencer 201G process, and the Senior Housing
for Ooka. So it goes back a number of years, and it's been the same application
basically.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Lee.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo.
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MR. MUNEKIYO: Mr. Chainnan, and Member Anderson, if I could refer you to
Appendix A of the final environmental assessment, Appendix A is entitled
"description of materials fonn for affordable units". And that, in that section we
provide the completed fonns.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much. You know ... I think
I'll leave it at that. Mr. Chainnan, thank you for the time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions? Mr. Kane, you had a
question you wanted to raise?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, Mr. Chair, there was I believe within the public
testimony if I'm not mistaken and I apologize because I've been in and out of this
Committee meeting, again, although I'm not a Member, urn ... has there been
any public mention by the applicant with respects to the potential of a site
adjacent to the park on the front northern comer of the subject property for use
potentially by the Department of Education?
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Munekiyo, are you able to respond?
MR. MUNEKIYO: Yes, Mr. Chair. There is an approximately 18 or 19 acre parcel as
Member Kane has described along Kahekili Highway to the north of the park, and
that site was a subject ... or is a subject of discussion between the Department of
Education and the applicant as a possible location for a alternate school site. The
discussions have not advanced to the point where there is any commitment or
agreement that this is ... this can be used as new school site, but I think they're at
a point where certainly opportunities available and the applicant, Hale Mua
Properties, is willing to make that site available.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, as a follow up, if this project
does proceed through and receives approval from the full Council, uh ... when
ultimately the Director of Housing finalizes the final plans, there's potential for
this component to be incorporated into any sort of agreements that can be put
together with this project as it continues to evolves 'cause it doesn't end with us.
n continues on.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that something ... I don't know if Ms. Lee can just
acknowledge that that's a potential component that if, if there's successful
discussions with the applicant and the Department of Education that that could be
incorporated into a final document that I think you have the authority to sign off
on?
MS. LEE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you for your comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Members any additional questions? No. then
the Chair would like to respond to Ms., Ms. Johnson's inquiry as to where we're
gonna go from here. The Chair's intent was to exhaust the questions so we're
comfortable enough to be ... as the Committee Members, five of us, to be able to
I guess move either one or both resolutions to the full Council, and by being able
to exhaust the questions and I think we have reached that point, the Chair is ready
for a recommendation if the Committee Members are ready for it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Chair's recommendation.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. I guess the Housing and Human Services Committee
consists only of five Members. This project Hale Mua is one based on its size,
based on its impact, and the scope of (he project in its entirety warrants the full
We've had the privilege of having
discussion of all voting Members.
non-Committee Members participate with us, but all Members need to be able to
vote on this process. Therefore it's the Chair's recommendation that we move
both resolutions to the full Council-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So move.
CHAIR MATEO: --resolution approving Hale Mua affordable housing subdivision, as
well as the resolution disapproving the project.
That is the Chair's
recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So move.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MATEO: Moved by Member Johnson, seconded by Member Pontanilla.
Members, any discussion? Hearing none all ... I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, the only thing I just wanted to say was that I
wanted to thank everyone including the members of the community whether
they're in support or not in support because the only way that we know about the
concerns of the community is through this process through the discussion. And I
also wanna thank Mr. Kim because he did through I think the past year and a half,
at least that I've been aware of this project, tried to incorporate as many of the
concerns that he was made aware of, and he did forward opportunities for not
only myself but other members not just of the Council but of the community in
general to comment on this and I just . . . I hope that we have answered the
majority of questions, and for one, I'm gonna, I'm just gonna say what I'm gonna
say now. When it comes to the full Council I will be supporting this project. I
just ... I feel that it's frustrating sometimes when you go this route but, you
know, I want the community to know where I stand right now on it and I will be
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supporting the project, but I also support moving forward both resolutions. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I give my
comments, I'd like to yield the floor to all the Committee Members first if they
have a comment.
CHAIR MATEO: Committee Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to acknowledge your
professionalism in moving this thing forward. I look forward to the Council
meeting in regards to both resolutions. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, motion on the floor. All those
in favor signify by saying ... I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sorry.
CHAIR MATEO: I'm sorry, Mr. Molina. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you. As a non-Committee Member
I appreciate you acknowledging me, Mr. Chair. First of all, I think you're doing
the right thing in sending this to the full Council for all nine of us to vote on and
like Member Johnson said express my thank you's to Mr. Kim for doing his part
to address the affordable housing crisis here on Maui. Upon hearing this proj ... ,
hearing about this project many, many months ago, there were some ... there
have been some things that have changed as you've heard. Initially there was
suppose to be a larger percentage of affordables as compared to what the current
application shows. The applicant has been asked to take on the infrastructure
responsibilities of someone else and it's just been raising a lot of questions. I
think we're ... as we move a long with this process it's just, uh ... for me
anyway it just raised my eye ... the proverbial eyebrow up a little more I think
for me any way. I think I just wanna find out why this is occurring and why the
changes. Today for example the issue on water when it was told to us that the
H-Poko well will be used as a potential source or backup for this project. For me
in the area that I come from in the Upcountry region of Maui, the H-Poko well
has been used as a backup to help I guess ease the impacts on our residents when
droughts occur. So for me I'd like to know what kind of impact this will have on
that well, and what are the alternatives to assist our residents in the Upcountry
area should this water source be used what are the alternatives. Would it make
drought ... times of drought tougher on our residents now in the Up country area
if this well is used? And of course the issue of traffic has been at the forefront.
Today upon hearing the Police Department seemingly take a hard stance on this
project it's raised some concerns for me. So I look forward to the challenge when
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this matter comes before the full Council, Mr. Chairman. So I think it will make
for a very interesting meeting, and if I'm correct, Mr. Chairman, will that be on
August 23 rd as projected date of our meeting.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you Mr. Molina and you take care of that proverbial eyebrow.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Laughter.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, the motion on the floor.
saymg aye.

All those in favor signify by

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

VOTE:

ACTION:

AYES:

Councilmember Hokama, Johnson, Pontanilla,
Tavares and Chair Mateo.
NOSE:
None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT:
None.
EXC.:
None.
DISCHARGE from further consideration of both proposed
resolutions by C.R.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, I just need to take this opportunity
to thank all of you for your participation and discussion throughout the last
several meetings, and obviously the 201G process provides an unfair burden for
adequate review and dialogue to enhance this project or any project for the mere
fact that our resolve is simply to vote it up or down. Our limitations are
frustrating to say the least. Forty-five days is not a realistic window to fully
comprehend, review and resolve crucial issues including legal considerations as
they surface. Not knowing how negotiations or commitments are made for
specific projects as well as the rationale behind each one of these negotiations
adds to the difficulty this Committee receives and go through and experiences. In
addition, public input only comes at the end, at the tail end which kind of puts us
in, in a even more difficult situation because as the public cites issues and
concerns we can only address them at the tail end of the discussion. So I
appreciate your hard work, and I appreciate your commitment in going through
the process. This has been a very long day, Members. I thank you all very much.
To the departments that have participated with us thank you for your efforts. The
Housing and Human Services Committee for August 4th , 2005, adjourned.
(gavel)
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ADJOURNED:

0, Chair
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